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To produce Automotive Wheels and Allied
Products of International Quality Standard of ISO
9002 and contribute towards national economy

by import substitution, exports, taxation,
employment and consistently compensate the
stake holders through stable returns.
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED,

Manufacturers of Automotive Wheels in Pakistan
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Lasbella, Baluchistan.
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PROFILE OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi
Chairman (Non Executive Director)

Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi is an Non Executive Director and he is a Chartered Accountant and a
fellow of the Institute of the Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and Pakistan. He
carries a vast experience of teaching, management of large scale industries, investment and
financing. He has been associated with National Investment Trust (NIT) and has served on the
Board of various companies as a nominee Director of NIT. He has attended various seminars and
lectures in the process of continuing professional development and have been associated with
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) Committee for Technical Services and also
served as a member of Quality Assurance Board of ICAP.

He is a Certified Director and had completed Director’s Training Programme from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Mr. Razak H. M. Bengali
Managing Director / CEO (Executive Director)

Mr. Razak Haji Mohammed Bengali belongs to an industrialist family which has been in business
since 1947. After graduating in First Class First Position in commerce from Karachi, he joined
Siemens and proceeded to Germany where he received business education in German language
and passed the examination of Industrial Businessmen (equivalent to MBA).

After coming back from Germany, he remained associated with his family business for about 30
years. At present, he is the Chief Executive of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (an engineering unit
producing automotive steel wheel rims), which position he has been holding since July, 1998.

He has been the Chairman of Filament Yarn Manufacturers Association, and Vice President of the
Employers Federation of Pakistan.

Also, he has been the President and Vice President of Pakistan German Business Forum (PGBF)
for a long number of years. He made this institution active and vibrant which has the recognition
and support of various Government organizations and the business people in Pakistan and in
Germany.

He holds the membership of the following social bodies:

1. Member and Past President of Karachi Gymkhana
2. Member of Karachi Boat Club

3. Member of Rotary Club of Karachi Continental

4. Member of Defence Authority Country & Golf Club

Also, he has participated in various international seminars, and has widely traveled around the
globe. Besides English and Urdu, he is well-versed in German language.
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Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri
Director Marketing / Business Development (Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri is a Graduate from Sindh University. After graduation, he
proceeded to Saudi Arabia and started his business of trading, imports and distribution of food
items from 1982 and captured a larger market share in this field in Saudi Arabia.

He came back to Pakistan and set up a food processing industry with the name of Zaiga Food
Industries in the year 1995. The unit is engaged in processing of spices and other foods items and
in exports of the same to the gulf countries, the Middle East, the UK, the USA and the Canada.

In the year 1998, he took over with the association of his friends the management of Baluchistan
Wheels Limited, and since then he is involved in managing and running the company with
dedication and hard-work. He is a man of wisdom and possesses business acumen.

He has been the member of Managing Committee of the Federation of Pakistan Chambers of
Commerce & Industry. He has also served as the Chairman of Pakistan Association of Automotive
Parts & Accessories Manufacturers (PAAPAM) and played an active role for the growth of
Vending Industry as well as for the Auto Industry in the Country.

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani
Chief Operating Officer (Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani joined Baluchistan Wheels Ltd as Chief Operating Officer (C.0.0) in
the year 1996 and took the responsibility of planning and production. He has been instrumental in
the balancing modernization and expansion of various Plant facilities at BWL. He has over 30
years of experience in the field of manufacturing, marketing & administration. He has been
associated with various business groups. He is certified Director and had successfully completed
Director’s Training Programme from the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).

: Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah
Independent Director

Syed Zubair Ahmad Shah is MBA from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) Karachi and
MPhil in Economics from Glasgow University UK. He did post graduate diploma in General
Management of State Enterprises with distinction from the Research Institute for Development
Sciences, Netherlands. In addition he has attended and qualied various short international
seminars/courses in the eld of Privatization, Development Policies, Corporate Planning and
Performance Evaluation etc. He joined NIT on May 21, 2010 as Controller of Branches. He have
been representing NIT as Director on the Board of various Companies since 1999.Presently he
represents NIT as Director on the Board of Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. He is an independent
Director on the Board of Baluchistan Wheels Ltd.
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Mr. Muhammad Javed
Independent Director

Mr. Muhammad Javed is a Mechanical Engineer and life time member of Pakistan Engineering
Council. He had foreign training in Japan and visits to China, Taiwan, Malaysia, Netherlands,
Turkey and India for technical agreement, selection /testing and development of plant machinery
and equipment.

He has over 40 years’ experience of managing engineering and automobile wheel industry. He
retired from the Baluchistan Wheels Limited in 2015 after serving 31years at various positions,
Head of Technical Division and Director on Board and executed projects of Plant Expansion
&Modernization.

Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi
Independent Director

Mr. Irffan Ahmed Qureshi has over 30 years of versatile experience in the fields of
Investment-Banking, Feasibility Studies of projects and its implementation by raising equity &
debt, Leasing, Finance and Corporate affairs and Manufacturing. He had been associated with
Baluchistan Wheels Ltd (BWL) for over 15 years in various capacities as company secretary,
Head of Finance & Director on the Board. He retired from the Baluchistan Wheels Limited in 2015
and is very well versed with the Auto Vending and Assembly Industry. He is a Commerce
Graduate and an MBA besides he is also a member of Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Managers.

Mr. Aamir Amin
Independent Director

Mr. Aamir Amin is at present Head of Finance of National Investment Trust Limited. Mr. Amin is a
Chartered Accountant by profession from Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
with training from Ernst & Young — Pakistan. He is also a Certified Information Systems Auditor
(CISA). He has work experience of over 19 years, substantially in financial services industry and
also represents NIT as Nominee Director on various Boards.

Mrs. Saba Nadeem
Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Saba Nadeem belongs to a business family. She has done A 'Levels. Also, she has done
Diploma in Interior Designing from the Indus Valley School of Arts, and remained involved in
activities like Fabric Painting and Glass Painting. She has been a teacher in a grammar school in
Clifton, Karachi.

She is a Certified Director and had completed Director Education Certification Program from the
Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP).

She has developed a special interest in being involved in business and commerce and, therefore,
she has chosen to be on the Board of Directors of Baluchistan Wheels Limited.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani
Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer Director Marketing / Business Development Chief Operating Officer
(Executive Director) (Executive Director) (Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Yunus Ladha
Chief Financial Officer / Sr. General Manager (Finance)

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Ladha is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) & a fellow member of the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of
Pakistan (ICMAP). Besides this he is also fellow member of Chartered Secretaries, Certified
Internal Control Auditor (USA) and CPA (UK).

He is also a member of the Economic Advisory & Government Relationship Committee of the
ICAP. He has over thirty years of experience in the field of Finance & Accounts, Taxation &
Corporate Affairs.

He has worked in various multinational / public listed companies. He is associated with the
Company since 1996. Presently, he is CFO / Senior General Manager (Finance).

. LtCol (R) Mehboob Ahmed
: General Manager (Technical)
| '
’ ' Lt Col (R) Mehboob Ahmed is Mechanical Engineer (UET), and also hold PGD in Production

Engineering (NUST). He has served in the army from 1983-2011 and performed various

|
4 ____,.-I h | assignments related to Technical Evaluation of Vehicles & Equipment for repair, maintenance,
. / | Inspections & supervision of workshop for production / quality.

Versatile experience in serving with reputed organization including National Logistic Cell
(NLC),Pakistan Ordinance Factories (POF), Pakistan Ranger and Central/Base workshops. He
joined BWL in 2014 and currently working as General Manager (Technical).

. Mr. Fareed Abdul Razzak
P General Manager (Finance) / Deputy CFO

Mr. Fareed Abdul Razzak has done his EMBA from Karachi School of Business
' Leadership (KSBL), he is also MBA (Finance) and MCS. He is associated with the
- company since year 2000 and currently working as General Manager Finance / Deputy
& " ' " & CFO.

He has vast experience in the field of Accounts & Finance, Treasury, Banking Matters
& Corporate Affairs.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Syed Pervez Akhtar
General Manager {H.R /1.R}

Syed Pervez Akhtar has done his MBA in Human Resource Management and is also
a Law Graduate.

He carries working experience of 25 years in the areas of Human Resource
Management and Industrial Relations in reputed organizations such as Kohinoor
Chemical Co. (Tibet Group), S.G. Fiber Limited and Pak Hy-Oils Limited.

Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed
Company Secretary / Deputy General Manager (Finance)

Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP). He has over twenty years of experience in the field of Finance & Accounts, Taxation,
Internal Audit & Corporate Affairs. He has worked in various public listed companies. At present,
he is working as Company Secretary / Deputy General Manage (Finance).

He is associated with the company since 2007. In addition he has attended various seminars
fcourses / conferences on Finance / Taxation / Audit / Corporate & Financial Reporting /Budget
etc.

Mr. Kumail Irfan Ghani
Deputy General Manager (Supply & Services)

Mr. Kumail Irfan Ghani completed his BSc (Hons) Accounting from University of Hull,
England and MSc Banking and International Finance from Cass Business School,
Landon, England.

He has previously worked at Standard Chartered and NIB Bank. Mr. Kumail is a
progressive minded individual who joined us in 2014. Currently he is working as Head
of Supply & Services Department.

Chief Internal Auditor

Hafiz Shoaib Ahmed Chauhan
Chief Internal Auditor

Hafiz Shoaib Ahmed Chauhan is an associate of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP). Besides, he is also an Associate of Pakistan Institute of Public
Finance Accountants and also a Certified Internal Controls Auditor.

Currently he is working as Chief Internal Auditor / Deputy General Manager. He is
associated with the Company since 2014. He has over ten years of experience in the
field of Audit, Finance, Taxation and Corporate Affairs.



ASSETS

Non Current Assets
Property,plant & equipment
Long-term loans & adwances

Long-term deposits

Current Assets

Stores, spare parts & loose toals
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
(Other receivables

Short term investments

Sales tax refundable - net

Tasxation - net

Bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Authorised Capital

25,000,000 Ord. shares of Rs. 10/- each

Share Capital
Revaluation of Land

Reserves

Non Current Liabilites

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Long term loan

Long term deposits

Long term Gowvernment grant

GIDC Payable

Dreferred taxation

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Current portion of
- liabilitics against assets subject to finance lease
- long term loan
- long term adwance
- long term deposits
- long term government grant
- GIDC Payable
Prowision for warranty
Taxation-net

Sales tax payable - net

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Rupees in '000'

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
963,138 950,050 414,291 449,581 494,967 367,269
6,138 6,176 3,826 3,415 3,855 4,275
7,649 7,709 4,418 4,607 5,777 5,063
976,925 963,935 422,535 457,603 504,599 376,607
39,729 37,804 39,345 50,840 54,455 55,930
539,764 343,671 413,575 525,105 532,188 518,874
258,317 264,625 108,542 144,187 165,572 95,781
41,073 32,004 16,331 15,914 24,805 32,592
1,433 556 1,709 2,347 2,049 1,694
792 29,986 7,010 431 928 2,894
523,766 550,573 333,906 102,827 5,516 261,671
- 595 1,826 - - 8,554
- 32,690 103,518 129,302 141,608 77,553
66,034 19,320 60,362 44,994 31,116 27,530
1,470,908 1,311,824 1,086,124 1,015,947 958,237 1,083,073
2 447 833 2,075,750 1,508,659 1,473,550 1,462,836 1,459,680
250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000
133,343 133,343 133,343 133,343 133,343 133,343
579,075 538,518 - - - -
1,329,352 1,249,035 1,161,311 1,154,676 1,135,647 1,107,742
2,041,770 1,920,896 1,294,654 1,288,019 1,268,990 1,241,085
13,949 23,477 6,330 989 5,306 4,958
- 10,418 30,849 . . .
896 1,405 982 2,010 1,710 874
- 91 1,923 . } N
- 1,311 - - - -
34,972 33,694 33,292 38,250 34,958 29,179
49,817 70,396 73,376 41,249 41,974 35,011
183,306 240,350 116,995 122,709 133,499 171,734
7,087 6,065 5,913 6,846 5,281 4,835
12,365 13,973 5,302 3,747 5,257 2,048
8,790 19,768 8,711 - - -
- - - 2,580 - -
1,053 563 1,457 - - -
91 1,378 1,438 - - -
175 581
2,716 1,889 813 1,354 5,033 4,067
130,781 - - - - -
9,882 7 7 7,046 2,802 7
356,246 284,467 140,629 144,282 151,872 183,584
2,447 833 2,075,759 1,508,659 1,473,550 1,462,836 1,459,680




Turnover - net
Cost of Sales
Gorss Profic

Ihstribution Costs
Administration Expenses
Orther Pxpenses

I"inance Costs

Oither Income

Profit before Taxarion
Taxanon
Profit afrer Taxation

llarnings per Share (Rupees) - Basic and Diluted
SIGNIFICANT RATIOS AND STATISTICS
Liguidity & Leverage Ratios:

-Curtent Ratios
-Quuck Ratios

-Liability as 2 "o of Total Asscts
Interest Cover Ratio {Times)

Equity Ratios:
Break up Value per Share (Rs)
-Dividend as a "o of Capital
Devidend Yield Rano,/ Cost of Fauirne (79)
-Dnvidend per Share (IRs)

Profitability Ratios:
Crross Profit ("v)
-Operatng Profit{ ")
-Profit before Tax(® )
Proficalier Tax (")

.y

{
A

Rotura o f amdtal amaloved
notutn on Lapiia mpioyedd

-liarnings per Share (Rs)
-Price anng Ravof Times)
Dividend Pagout Ratio {0
-Dividend Cover (Limes)
-Capital Turnover {Limes)

-Return on Assets (")

Turnover/Efficiency Ratios;

SInventory Turhover Ratio(Limes)
-Debtor Turnover Ratiof Limes)
Fived Assets Turnover Rano(limes)

Plant Capacity:

-Plant Capacity Utllisation ")

Share Performance:
-Year end bMarket Price per Share
I Tigh Price per Share during the Year
-l.ow Price per Shate during the Year

SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Rupees in "000'

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITEDgT

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2,778,192 1,574,822 912,820) 1,587,558 1,882,641 1,333,650
(2,166,540) (1,331,754 (795,400) {1,341,776) (1,612,676) (1,234,745)
611,652 243163 17414 245,782 260,564 298,905
(66,798) (31,477) (35,424) (44,945) (60,116) (49,401}
(116,612) 91,246 (82,148) 142,595 (92,173} (86,544)
(51,406) {10,496) {1,784) {12,541) (8,284) {14,977)
(3,976) (4,216) (2,353) (6,791 (1,927) (1,378)
(238,792) (157,433) (121,709 (156,872) (162,402) {152,101
52,514 55,940 27,99 5,445 180 25 404
425,374 141,568 23,695 93,955 117,742 172,209
(217,136) (41,882) (4,775) (22,443) (19,953) (45,867)
208,238 100,686 18,920 71,512 87,789 126,342
15.62 7.55 1.42 5.36 (.38 9.48
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
4.13 4,59 772 704 6.31 5.90
2.50 326 450 305 2.45 257
16.59 15.59 14.19 12.59 13.25 14.98
107.99 34.58 11.07 14.84 56.91 125.97
153.12 14400 97.09 96.59 95.18 93.007
100.00 4500 15,00 2000 3L 4.0
13.16 K70 247 3.27 257 2.69
10.00 4.50 1.500 200 3aH) 411
22.02 15.43 12.86 15.48 14.34 19.49
17.30 0.92 3105 0.34 5.83 11.32
15.31 809 2,60 5.92 572 11.23
7.50 6.39 207 450 4.60 824
2083 .37 183 29 §.40 13,84
15.62 7.55 1.42 5.36 6.58 9.48
487 10,46 42,800 11.41 16.45 15.67
04.03 59.59 105.71 37.31 45,56 42,19
1.56 1.G# 195 2.08 210 2.40
1.36 .82 171 1.23 1.48 1.24
8.51 4.42 1.25 4.85 [XLl] 8.00
4.51 319 1.35 231 278
10.63 844 722 10.25 14.41
2.88 1.66 228 3.53 3.80
76] | H| | 2] | M | 98] | 78|
76.00 T8O o3 61.15 1821 148.501
90.75 92.44 7189 11190 161194 194,100
062.00 55.210 4027 01.15 6.0 80.00




Non Currenc Assers
Properts. plant & eguipnicit
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L teem Gewt Geane

GIDE Parable

Delutted raxnon
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND ITS
DISTRIBUTION

Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution 2022 2021
(Rupees in '000") % (Rupees in '000") %
Wealth Generated
Total gross revenue and other income 3,302,294 1,953,316
Brought in materials and services 2,042,584 1,228,719
1,259,710 100.00 724,597 100.00
Wealth distribution to stakeholders
To Employees
Salaties and wages including retitement benefits 297,323 23.60 204,694 28.25
To Government and Society
Income Tax, Sales Tax, FED and WWF 699,737 55.55 366,325 50.56
To Shareholders
Dividend 133,343 10.59 60,004 8.28
To providers of Finance
Financial charges for borrowed funds 3795 0.30 3,960 0.55
To Company
Retained Profits, Dep and Amortizatin 125,513 9.96 89,614 12.37
1,259,710 100.00 724,597 100.00

Wealth distribution to stakeholders
2022

u To Employees

m T'o Govemment and Society
u To Shareholders

1 To Prowder of Finance

u To Company

Wealth distribution to stakeholders

12.37

50.56

2021

u To Employees

B To Govemment and Sodiety
# T'o Shareholders

1 T'o Provider of Finance

uTo Company
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN ON THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF
BOARD AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE ROLE PLAYED BY THE BOARD IN
ACHIEVING THE COMPANY’S OBJECTIVES:

The Board of Directors (the Board) of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (BWL) has performed their
duties diligently in upholding the best interest of shareholders’ of the Company and has managed the
affairs of the Company in an effective andefficient manner. The Board has exercised its powers
andhas performed its duties as stated in the Companies Act, 2017 (previously Companies Ordinance
1984), the Listed Companies Corporate Governance Regulations 2019(the Code) and the RuleBook
of the Pakistan Stock Exchange (the Rule Book) wherethe Company is listed.

The Board during the year ended 30 June 2022 played an effective role in managing the affairs of the
Company andachieving its objectives in the following manner;

» 'The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of non-executive, independent
and female directors on theBoard and its committees as required under the Code and that
members of the Board and its respectivecommittees have adequate skill, experience and
knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company;

» The Board has formed an Audit Committee and Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee and has approved theirrespective terms of references and has assigned adequate

resources so that the committees perform theirresponsibilities diligently;

» The Board has developed and put in place the rigorous mechanism for an annual evaluation
of its own performanceand that of its committees and individual directors. The findings of
the annual evaluation are assessed andre-evaluated by the Board periodically;

» 'The Board has ensured that the directors are provided with orientation courses to enable
them to perform theirduties in an effective manner and that the five directors of the
Company have certification under Directors Training Program and two directors of the
Company have the exemption from the requirements of the Directors’ Training Program;

» 'The Board has ensutred that the meetings of the Board and that of its Committees were held
with the requisitequorum, all the decision making were taken through Board resolution and
that the minutes of all the meetings(including committees) are appropriately recorded and
maintained;

» 'The Board has developed a code of conduct setting forth the professional standards and
corporate values adheredthrough the Company and has developed significant policies for
smooth functioning;
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#  All the related party transactions executed by theCompany were approved by the Board on

the recommendation of the Audit Committee:

# l'he Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal conerol 1s i place and its regular

asscssment throughsclf-assessment mechanism and Jor internal audit activities;

# The Board has prepared and approved the director’s report and has ensured that the
ditectors’ report 15 published with the quarterly and annual financial statements of the
Company and the content of the directors’ report are 1 accordance with the requirement of

applicable laws and regulations;

# 'Ihe Board has cnsured the hiting, evaluation and compensation of the Chief Lixecutive and
other key executivesincluding Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, and [lead of
Internal Audic;

# The Board has ensured that adequate information 1s shared among 1ts members in a timely

mannecr and the Board members are kept abreast of developments between meetmgs; and

# The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the I3oard 1 accordance
with the relevant lawsand regulation applicable on the Company and the Board has always
prionnzed the Compliance with all the applicable laws and regulation i terms of their

conduct as directors and exercising their powers and decision making,

The evaluation of the Board’s performance 1s assessed based on those key areas where the Board
requires clanty morder to provide high level oversight, including thestrategic process; key business
drivers and performing milestones,the global economic environment and competitive context n
which the Company operates: the risk faced by theCompany’s business: Board dynamics: capability

and mformation flows.

Based on the aforementioned, it can reasonably be stated that the Board of BWL has played a key
tole mn ensuring that the Company objectives are notonly achieved, but also exceeded expectations

through a jomet effort with the management team and guidance and oversight by the Board and its

members,
ANIS WAHAB ZUBERI
Chairman

August 31, 2022
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DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present their Report together with the Audited Financial Statements
and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over all at the national level, the production of Passenger Cars increased by 49% with the total
production of 226,433 units in the financial year (FY) 2022 as compared to 151,182 units in FY
2021. Likewise, 44,421 units of LCVs, Vans and Jeeps were produced in the FY 2022, as against
the production of 31,072 units in the FY 2021, showing an increase of 43% over the last year. In
the same manner, 6,320 trucks/buses were produced in the FY 2022 as against 4,378
trucks/buses in the FY 2021, showing an increase of 44%. The production of tractors also
increased to 58,880 units in the FY 2022, compared to 50,751 units in the previous year, showing
an increase of 16%.

The entire Auto Sector showed an improved performance during the FY 2022, due to increasing
demand for Autos and rapid economic recovery. The car assemblers enjoyed a big recovery of
55% in the Financial Year 2021-2022, due to an impressive increase in the purchasing power of
the auto-consumers.

During the financial year 2021-2022 the company had overall consolidated revenue of
Rs.2,778.192 million as compared to Rs.1,574.822 million which is 76% higher than the previous
year. The car wheels sale was Rs. 1,403.692 million as compared to Rs. 667.698 million in the
previous year increased significantly by 110%. The Truck / Bus wheels sale was Rs. 229.197
million as compared to Rs. 171.341 million in the previous year increased by 34%.Similarly, the
Tractor wheels sale was also increased to Rs. 993.229 million as compared to Rs. 644.443 million
in the previous year increased by 54 %.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The increase in turnover of 76% is due to the increase in sales of all segments i.e. Car, Truck / Bus
and Tractor wheel which increased by 110%, 34% &54% respectively. The Cost of Sales was Rs.
2,166,540 million during the year under review as against Rs. 1,331.759 million, last year. The
gross profit increased by 153% to Rs. 611.652 million against Rs. 243.063 million last year.
Similarly, the company earned profit after taxation of Rs. 208.238 million as compared to Rs.
100.686 million in the previous year, increased by 107 %.

The main reason for increase in Gross Profit and Profit after Taxation is due to the higher demand
of wheels in all segments which is due to the robust sales in the Auto Sector during the year under
review as the assemblers are cashing in on the strong demand backlog and improvement in
supply chain.
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The comparative financial results for the year 2022 as against the year 2021 are as follows:

2022 | 2021
(Rs.in ‘000)
Turnover-net 2,778,192 1,574,822
Gross Profit 611,652 243,063
Profit before Taxation 425,374 141,568
Profit after Taxation 208,238 100,686
Earnings per Share (Rs.) 15.62 7.55

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Based on the net profit for the current year, the earnings per share is Rs. 15.62(2021: Rs. 7.55)

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors have approved final cash dividend of Rs. 4.75per share(47.50%) for the year
ended June 30, 2022 amounting Rs. 63.338 million (2021: Rs.4.50 per share 45% amounting
Rs.60.004 million). This is an addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs. 5.25 per share (52.50%)
already declared and paid to the shareholders thus making a total of Rs. 10.00 per share cash dividend
(100%) for the financial year 2021-2022.

HUMAN RESOURCE & WELFARE SCHEMES

We firmly believe that our officers, staff and workforce are the backbone of our business. The
management believes in encouraging the talented and dedicated employees, who are frequently sent
for training at home and abroad to update their professional and technical skills. Human resource
policies were designed to ensure best practices to attract, recruit, develop and retain highest quality of
human capital.

Direct and indirect rewards to the workforce like worker-of-the-month award, special health
allocation and many other such benefits are in place. The Labour laws are strictly followed and the
company is able to maintain cordial relationship with CBA Labour Union. The management is also
regularly paying bonus to all the employees. WPPF as well as Eid advance are also being paid to the
workers. The Company also gives workers social security and EOBI pension benefit / facilities.

SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT

We are actively managing health and safety risks associated with our manufacturing process and are
working towards improving our procedures to reduce and control the risk of accidents or injuries
during work & up till now no serious accident has taken place during the production, resulting in any
major injury or loss of life. All employees at plant are provided safety appliance/equipments i.e.
uniform, shoes, helmets, ear plugs and gloves, goggles etc. during performance of their duties. Fire
fighting system has been installed to cope with any mishap and full time safety officer is employed for
this job. In house Fire Fighting and safety training and exercises are carried out regularly.
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The company allows and shall continue the medical facilities and other facilities as may be
adequate from time to time for up keep of health of its employees. A dispensary with qualified
dispenser has been established in the factory for all types of treatment/emergency. Services of
qualified MBBS doctors have been hired on retainer ship basis for treatment/emergency of
employees. Workers medical check-up is conducted by certifying surgeon in every six months.
Apart from this, healthy activities of sports are encouraged, and we have a cricket as well as
football team. Every year picnic arranged for Officers and workers.

Protection of environment is of prime concern, every measure is being taken to preserve nature
and to maintain clean environment at workplaces. Green environment is maintained by planting
trees and grass all around the factory. BWL fully discourages the use of substance of concern and
ensure that all the products& material procured and products manufactured are free from
hazardous material.

We comply with all applicable laws, regulations and conditions granted in environmental
standards. Design new facilities and conduct operations with preventive approach and industry
best practices to avoid adverse impacts to the human health and the environment. Ensure
appropriate training and awareness on environmental systems, procedures, best practices and on
shared responsibility towards environmental protection among employees, contractors,
suppliers and customers. Regularly review environmental performance and carry out audit and
set targets to achieve continuous improvement.

The company has obtained International Certification 1SO-14001 of environment to meet the
International Environment Standards and has been recertified by the International Agency.

ENERGY CONSERVATION

Effective measures and steps are being taken to conserve energy, wherever possible in the area of
electricity, gas and heating system to reduce the consumption of electricity, gas and fuels etc. in
this regard a comprehensive plan is made and implemented and production and operations are
planned in such a manner that only essential plant are operated in electricity peak hours.

UPGRADATION OF PLANT & PROCESS

The company is producing wheels as per International Standards, and to meet the customer’s
product specification and quality requirements it is necessary that plant and machinery and
process are continuously upgraded and maintain in good working and operative condition so that
we get a satisfactory performance and machine and equipments give a good and longer period of
workable life.

Foreign technical experts are engaged from time to time and continuous liaison is kept with the
plant and machinery equipment suppliers for technical advice and improvements.

This year following machines are refurbished/overhauled in house.
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1500 Ton Hvdraulic Press.

Complete overhauling/refurbishment of 1500 Ton hydraulic press has been done successfully in
house. In this respect we dismantled all major & minor assemblies of the press i.e. main pump,
Dampers, top ejector, cushion, lubrication system, return cylinders, loading module, lowering
module, pilot pump & completely drained oil, cleaned oil tank, refill new hydraulic oil.After
complete overhauling & serviced all the assemblies fitted back & we operationalized the
press.Here it is mentioned that previously this press was limited to only one product but after
refurbishing the press we are able to use this press for other products specially TBD 14mm
thickness discs.In this press we only outsource dampers for hard chroming & machining work of
its piston& housing.

HD Circling Machine.

Overhauling/refurbishment of the subject machine have been successfully done in house.In this
particular case we dismantled the machine completely taken out the rollers of machine, done
machining of rollers, replaced worn out bearings & serviced all the adjustment jacks.After
machining of rollers and replacement of bearings reassembled the machine and rollers were
fitted back and adjusted them accordingly.After overhauling machine efficiency is enhanced
considerably.Here it is mention that this machine is overhauled by our engineers first time in
house because in 2018 the Chinese Engineers were came to factory for its overhauling and
refurbishment work and at that time we were work together with them.In this regard
maintenance department has done a great job because this machine is very complicated and
typical type machine and need special attention during maintenance.

1000 Ton Henrv Berrv Hvdraulic Press

Complete overhauling /refurbishment of the subject press has been done successfully in house
this year.Previously this press was limited to work under 500 Ton pressure and because of this
bottle neck we are unable to make discs of 12mm or more thickness material feasibly.Considering
this we start working on this press In this respect we add one more pump of 90 KW capacity,
removed oil leakages, serviced and checked all the modules, solenoid valves, Prefill valve,
replaced filters and adjusted desired pressures.After removing all these bottle necks we are now
able to produced TBD Discs up to 14mm thickness materials.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT & QUALITY CONTROL

The Research and Development (R&D) Department is constantly engage to support the
development of new products and production as per customer’s satisfaction and international
standards. Over the year the R&D facilities have grown and our Design Office is now capable of
computer added designing of products, tool & dies, jigs and fixtures and FEA / Computer analysis
of design for confirmation and 3D model development.

R&D Department has a complete Tool & Die manufacturing shop equipped with the Conventional
and CNC Machines for in-house manufacturing of complete set of Tools Dies, Fixtures, Jigs, Gauges
and running Tooling Spares to meet the production requirement and also support in repair and
manufacturing of Machineries spares etc.
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process, reduce down time and rejections by analyzing and supporting for addition of latest
equipment, machineries and tooling etc.

Wheel being a critical and safety part requiring very stringent dimensional control are being
manufactured with a standard quality control procedures and quality is being assured right from
the material procurements to the final delivery to the customers.

Quality Control Department is equipped with the requisite international standard testing
equipment’s, tool and instruments to control the process and to monitor the quality of wheels.
The instruments / gauges, quality checking equipment’s are regularly up graded and calibrated to
ensure its precision and accuracy so that products are produce as per customer quality
requirement and this is also supplemented by the experienced and trained manpower.

COMPANY'’S CONTRIBUTION TO THE ECONOMY OF THE COUNTRY

Your company being an import substitution unit is contributing to the economy by saving foreign
exchange and is very important vending industry for the auto assemblers. During the year under
review, your company saved approx. $14.62million foreign exchange reserves on account of
supply of wheels to the OEM’s and contributed to national exchequer by paying income tax, sales
tax and other indirect taxes to the tune of Rs.527 million (approx.). Besides, it is also providing
employment opportunities to the local people residing in Hub and other adjoining areas.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Board of Directors and the Company remain committed to the principles of good corporate
management practice with emphasis on transparency and disclosures. The Board and
management are cognizant to their responsibilities and monitor the Company’s operations and
performance to enhance the accuracy, comprehensiveness and transparency of financial and non-
financial information.

In Compliance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange the
Board Members / Directors are pleased to place the following statements on record:

a. The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b. Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.
c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent

judgment.

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in the preparation of financial statements.

e. The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

f. There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as going concern.
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’ Key Operating and Financial Data

The Key operating and financial data for last six years is given in this report.
Government Taxes

Outstanding Taxes were Rs. 140.663 million as disclosed in the Financial Statements.
Investment of Employees Retirement Funds

The following were the value of investments held by employee’s retirement benefits fund at the year
end:
June 22( un-audited)

- Executive Provident Fund Rs.139.258 million
- Non-Executive Provident Fund Rs. 47.999 million
- Gratuity Fund Rs.88.698 million

Election of Directors

The new Board of Directors was constituted as a result of election of directors held on May 24, 2022
and accordingly its committees were reconstituted. The new Board comprises Nine (9) directors
which include four (4) independent directors, two (2) non-executive directors and three (3)
executive directors. The independent directors had been chosen from the data bank maintained by
the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) in terms of Section 166 (1) of the Companies
Act, 2017. Furthermore, the independent directors met the justification and selection criteria, as per
the requirement of Section 166 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017, and they have been elected in the
same manner as other directors in terms of section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Composition of the Board

In line with the requirements of the CCG, the Company encourages representation of independent
and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board.

The current composition of the Board is as follows:

Total number of Directors:

Total Number of Directors : 9 including
(a) Male :8
(a) Female :1

Composition of the Board:

(a) IndependentDirectors: 4

(a) Non-executive Directors: 2

(a) Executive Directors: 3




The Board is responsible for making decisions with respect to important management matters,
including the execution of important business activities and other matters as prescribed by law.
These decisions are made after deliberating such matters according to the established criteria,
assessing risks and giving such matters due consideration. The Board is also responsible for

supervising and monitoring the conduct of duties.

Board of Directors Meetings

During the year, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each Director

was as follows:
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Sr.

Z
.

Name of Director

No. of
Meetings
Attended

Syed Haroon Rashid

Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali

Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani

Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi

Mr. Aamir Amin

Mr. Muhammad Javed

Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi

OR[N || || =

Mrs. Saba Nadeem

10 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah (w.e.f 25.05.2022)

SN IS S ES A RS

The leave of absence was granted to the member not attending the Board meetings.

Audit Committee Meetings

During the year four meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each Director

was as follows:

No. of Meetings

Sr. No. Name of Director Attended
1 Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi 4
2 Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 4
3 Mr. Aamir Amin 4
4 Mrs. Saba Nadeem 4

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

During the year a meeting of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR&R) was held.

Attendance by each Director was as follows:

. No. of Meetings
Sr. No. Name of Director Attended
1 Mr. Muhammad Javed 1
2 Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani 1
3 Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi 1
4 Syed Haroon Rashid 1
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Directors’ Remuneration

Directors Fee is paid in line with Board approval and the Company is in the process of finalizing a
formal policy in this regard in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the CCG.

Board Evaluation

During the year, the Board has undertaken a formal process of evaluation of its performance. The
overall performance of the Board measured on the defined parameters for the year was
satisfactory.

Directors’ Training

The Board ensured the compliance of the requirement of Code of Corporate Governance in
respect of Directors’ training program of the Board members. The Company stands complied
with the requirement of the Board Directors Training Program (DTP) certified as prescribed
under the sub clause 1 of regulation no. 19 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations 2019. Currently five directors of the Company have certification under
Directors Training Program and two directors of the Company have the exemption from the
requirements of the Directors’ Training Program. The remaining directors shall obtain
certification under the DTP in due course of time.

Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

There has been no material departure from the best practices of the Code of Corporate
Governance and the company has fully complied with requirements of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. A statement to this effect is annexed with this
report.

Pattern of Shareholding
The total number of Company’s shareholders as at June 30, 2022 was 1,302 as against 1,321on
June 30, 2021. The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2022 and its disclosure is included in

this annual report.

The highest and lowest market prices of the Company’s shares during 2021-2022 were as

follows:
Highest October 27, 2021 PKR 90.75
Lowest March31, 2022 PKR 62.00

Trading in Shares of the Company by Directors and Executives

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the directors, executives and their spouses and minor
children have not traded in the shares of the Company.
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Appointment of Auditors

The present Auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being
eligible offered themselves for re-appointment. The Audit Committee has recommended for their
re-appointment for the year ending June 30, 2023. The Directors endorse recommendation of
Audit Committee.

STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES

The Board regularly reviews the company’s strategic direction. Annual plans and performance
targets for business are set and are reviewed by the Board in the light of the company’s overall
objectives. The Board is committed to maintain highest standards of good corporate governance.
As a leading wheel manufacturer, reputation for high ethical standards is critical to business
success. Treatment of stakeholders with respect, courtesy and competence, ensuring clear
conscientiousness in all decisions and operations and on this basis code of business principles has
been developed and acknowledged by each Director and employee of the company.

NBP AND RELATED MATTERS

NBP suit for recovery against the Company (BWL) and Privatization Commission (PC) for
payment amounting to Rs. 91.25 million it has paid to PC, which the Company does not
acknowledge as briefly explained at Note No. 30.1 in the financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

On January 06, 2022, the Honorable Banking Court No. III Karachi, dismissed the Suit # 53 of
2017 in Company's favour, but the NBP has filed 1st Appeal # 34 of 2022 in the Honorable High
Court of Sindh against this order and the appeal is pending till date.

The management, based on the advice of its legal advisor is hopeful that the case will be decided
in favour of the Company (BWL). Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial
statements in respect of the above matter.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The demand for Autos remained upbeat and the auto sector posted a robust performance during
the previous financial year (July, 2021 - June, 2022).

However the auto industry fears massive drop in sales volume in the year 2022 - 23, in view of
the recent price hikes announced by the auto-makers amid continuous devaluation of PKR against
US Dollar, curbs on auto financing to compress demand, high interest rates, high sea freights,
soaring fuel prices (petrol and diesel), SBP restrictions on OEM for opening of L/Cs for import of
parts and accessories and the new taxes imposed from July 01, 2022. All these factors are putting
pressures on gross margin in the auto sector during the current financial year 2022-23.

The management being conscious of the challenges that lie ahead, is continuously evolving
strategies and adopting measures to meet future challenges and to maintain business growth.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We take this opportunity to thank our customers and all the stakeholders who reposed their trust

and confidence in the company and acknowledge the efforts of the entire BWL team including our
staff and workers and look forward to their continued support.

May Allah bless us and help us to achieve success for your company and for the benefit of all
stake holders, and the Country in general. Aameen!

For and on Behalf of the Board

» > 3
= —
/4

¥

Razak H.M. Bengali Muhammad Siddique Misri
Chief Executive Director

Karachi: August 31, 2022
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INVESTOR INFO

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
‘The 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on October 01, 2022,

Eligible shareholders are encouraged to participate and vote at General Meetings.

REGISTERED OFFICE

Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki,
l.asbella, Baluchistan.

Telephone # (0853} 363426,363428
Fax # (08537 364025
E-mail:bwlfin@cyber.net.pk
Website:http:/ /www.bwheels.com

SHARE REGISTRAR

THK Associates [Pvt] Limited

Plot # 32-C 2, Jami Commercial Street 2,

D.H.A. Phase VIl Karachi, 75500
E-mail:secretarial@thk.com.pk

UAN#+92[21) 111-000-322, Direct:+92 35310185
Fax#+92 (21} 35310188

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Baluchistan Wheels Limited is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

STOCK CODE/SYMBOL
The stock code/symbol lor trading in shares of Baluchistan Wheels Limiled is BWHL

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed
Company Secretary

Telephone : (+9221) 35650966
Fax: (+9221) 35684003

DIVIDEND
The Board of Directers has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 4.75/- per share (2021: Rs. 4.5/- per share) amounting le Rs. 63,338 millien (2021: Rs. 60.004 million) lor Lhe year
ended June 30, 2022, This is an addition to interim cash dividend of Rs. 5.25/- per share L.e 52.50%, making a total dividend of Rs, 10/- per share {100%).

BOOK CLOSURE DATES

Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration from September 23, 2022 to October 01, 2022 (both days inclusive).

DIVIDEND REMITTANCES
‘The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on August 31, 2022 has recommendeed the cash dividend of Rs. 4.75/- per share. If the dividend is approved at the

Annual General Meeting will be paid within the statutory time limit of 15 working days.

REPORTING

Period Financial Results
1st Quarler - September 2021 Qctober 28, 2021
Znd Quarter/Half Yearly - December 2021 February 18, 2022
3rd Quarter - March 2022 April 28, 2022
4th Quarter/Annual - Junc 2022 August 31, 2022
STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

During the year, the company has complied with all returns/forms and furnished all the relevant particulars as required under the repealed Cormpanies Act, 20117 and allied rules, the
Securities and Exchange Commission ol Pakistan (SECP) Regulations and the Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

INVESTOR GRIEVANCES
To date nane of the investors or sharcholders has filed any significant complaint against any services provided by the Company to its sharcholders. A standard grievance form is also
made availabe on the company's website : www.bwheels com

WEB PRESENCE
The Company maintains a functional website as per the directions and notifications issued by the SECP. Updated information regarding the company can be accessed at its website,
www.bwheels.com . The website contains the latest financial results of the Company with the Company's profile,
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Name of Company: BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2022

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 9as per the following:
a. Male: 8
b. Female: 1

2. The composition of Board is as follows:

Category Names

Independent Directors Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah
Mr. Muhammad Javed
Mzr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi
Mr. Aamir Amin

Non-Executive Director Mrtr. Anis Wahab Zuberi

Executive Directors Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali
Mr.Muhammad Siddique Misti
Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani

Female /Non-ExecutiveDirector Mzrs. Saba Nadeem

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven

listed companies, including this company;

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been takento disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and

procedures;

5. The boatd has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policiesof the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with their datesof approval or updating in maintained by the Company;



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED,

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been takenby the Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and

these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of
Act and the Regulationswith respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of
Board;

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors

inaccordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9. Out of the nine, seven Directors have either obtained certificate of Directors’ Training Program
or are exempted from the requirement of Directors’ Training Program as per the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. However, during the year, No

Directors’ Training Program was arranged;

10. There was no new appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit during the year;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board,;

12. The Board has formed the following Committees that are required under the Code. The

Committees comprise of members as given below:

a) Audit Committee
Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah Chairman (Independent Director)
Mr. AnisWahabZuberi Member
Mz. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi Member
Mr. Aamir Amin Member
b) HR and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Muhammad Javed Chairman (Independent Director)
Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani Member
Mr. AnisWahabZuberi Member
Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and

advised tothe committees for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:
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| Meetings Frequency
Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings were held during the

financial year ended June 30, 2022.

HR and Remuneration Committee One meeting was held during the financial year
ended June 30, 2022

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function. The Head of Internal Audit is
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and i1s conversantwith the
policies and procedures of the Company.

16. 'The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory ratingunder the Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan(ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board ofPakistan, that
they and all their partners are 1n compliance with Internationallederation of Accountants
(IFAC) guidclines on code of cthics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners
of the firm nvolved 1n the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Execunve Officer, Chief I'mmancial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide otherservices except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement andthe auditors have contirmed that they have observed IFAC

guidelines m this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of

theRegulations have beencomplied with.

oL BT
ANIS WAHAB ZUBERI

Chairman
August 31, 2022
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Flaar, Block-C
B Do Fax: +92 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Building No.1
I www.bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road
Karachi-74200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of

Baluchistan Wheels Limited for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the requirements
of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2022. N

KARACHI PR o

DATED: AUGUST 30, 2022 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer

UDIN: CR202210067HxY6kAVNs

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDQ Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floor, Block-C
l B DO Fax: +92 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Building No.1
www.bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road
Karachi-74200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED (the Company),

which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022, and the statement of profit or

loss, statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in equity .
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the

information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the

purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the profit and
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of

our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Page - 1

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the internaticnal BOO network of independent member firms.
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Following are the key audit matters:

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITEDgIE!

S. No | Key audit matters | How the matter was addressed in our audit
£ Contingencies
As disclosed in note 30 to the annexed | We performed number of pro;:edures to verify
financial statements, the Company has | the nature of contingencies and their
contingent liabilities in respect of legal and | implications on the financial statements.
tax matters, which are pending adjudication | These included, among others:
at different levels with the court and other
legal forums. *+ We followed up the progress of each case
and the Company’s estimate of the cost to
Contingencies require management to make be incurred;
judgments and estimates in relation to the
interpretation of laws, statutory rules, |« We reviewed the key elements of the
regulations and the probability of outcome methodology employed by management in
and financial impact, if any, on the Company challenging reasonableness of the caost
for disclosure and recognition and estimates including any impact on future
measurement of any provision that may be case costs from changes arising in the
required against such contingencies. regulatory environment;
|
Due to significance of amounts involved, | « We obtained confirmations from legal
inherent uncertainties with respect to the advisors for current status on pending
outcome of matters and use of significant cases and any new case filed during the
management judgments and estimates to year; and
assess the same including related financial :
impacts, we considered contingent liabilities | 4  Checked orders by relevant authority on
a key audit matter. previous lawsuits / cases appearing in the
financial statements.
7 Valuation of Stock-in-trade
At 30 June 2022, the Company held stock-in- | Our key audit procedures in' respect of
trade amounting to Rs. 539.764 million, | valuation of stock-in-trade included:
constituting 22% of the total assets, as
disclosed in note 11 to the financial |e Obtained an understanding of the
statements. Company’s process with respect to
; valuation of stock-in-trade and tested
As described in note 5.5 to the financial controls relevant to such process;
statements, stock-in-trade is measured at
lower of cost and net realizable value. The | e Tested the calculations of per unit cost of
cost of work-in-process and finished goods is finished goads and assess the
determined at an average manufacturing cost appropriateness of management’s basis
including a proportion of production for the allocation of cost and production
overheads. overheads and compared it with prior
' period to assess reasonableness;
Page - 2

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDQ International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITEDg!

S. No | Key audit matters | How the matter was addressed in our audit
There is an element of judgement involved in | « Evaluated the appropriateness of the basis
determining an appropriate costing basis and for identification of slow moving and
assessing the amount of provision for slow- obsolete stock-in-trade and the accuracy
moving and obsolete stock-in-trade. of provision for slow moving and obsolete

stock-in-trade assessed by the
Given the level of judgements and estimates management, on test basis. We tested the
involved, we have identified valuation of accuracy of ageing analysis of stock-in-
stock-in-trade as a key audit matter. trade, on a sample basis; and
= Tested the net realizable wvalue and
valuation methods in accordance with
applicable financial reporting standards.
3. Revaluation of Land .

During the year, the Company has carried out
its revaluation of freehold land by an
independent valuer by considering its nature,

size and location, as well as the trend in the :

real estate and property sector. Based on such
revaluation, the fair market value and forced
sale value of the said land is amounting to Rs.
581.634 million and 465.307 million
respectively, leading to recognition of
revaluation surplus amounting to Rs. 40.557
million.

Due to significant judgments and estimations
involve in the determination of revalued
amount, we considered this area as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

= We enquired about the qualification of
the managements’ independent valuer
and reviewed the revaluation report to
understand the basis and methodology
used for such valuation.

e We also assessed the adequacy of the
related disclosures in the financial
statements in accordance with applicable
financial reporting standards relating and
regulatory requirements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s repart

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Page - 3
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In connection with ocur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Compahy or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

@ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional aomissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);
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b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted
by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that
Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Ali Causer.

KARACHI (§ oy e

DATED: 3 1 AUG 2022 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
UDIN: AR2022100679zjkcsg0On
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITEDgY:

2022 2021
Note {Rupees in thousands)
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Opcrating fixed asscts 6 963,138 945 950
Capital work in progress 7 - 4.100
963.138 950.050
Long-term loans and advances 8 6.138 6,176
Long-term deposits 9 7,649 7,709
976.925 963.935
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores. spares and loose tools 10 39,729 37.804
Stock-in-trade 11 539764 343,671
Trade debis 12 258317 264,625
l.oans and advances 13 41,073 32.004
Deposits and short term prepayments 14 1.433 556
Other receivables 15 792 29.986
Short-term investments 16 523,766 550.573
Sales tax refundable - net - 5935
Taxation - net 17 - 32,690
Bank balances 18 06,034 19,320
1,470,908 1,311,824
TOTAL ASSETS 2,447.833 2,275,759
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital
25.000.000 (202 1: 25.000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 250,000 250,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 19 133.343 133,343
Revenue reserves 20 1,329 352 1.249. 035
Revalualion surplus on land 21 379,075 538,518
2.041.770 1,920.896
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term loan 22 - 10,418
Lease liabilities 23 13.949 23.477
Long-term deposits 24 866 1.405
Deferred taxation 25 34,972 33,694
Government grant 26 - a1
GIDC payable 27 - 1,311
49817 70,396
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 28 183.306 240.350
Un-claimed dividend 7.087 6,065
Current portion of long-term lease liabilities 23 12.365 13.973
Current portion of long-term loan 22 8.790 19.768
Current portion of long-term deposits 1.053 563
Current portion of government grant 26 9l 1.278
Current portion of GIDC payable 175 581
Sales tax payable - net 9,882 -
Taxation - net 17 130,781 -
Provision for warranty 29 2,716 1.889
356,246 284.467
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,447,833 2,275,759
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 30
The annexed notes [rom 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
, T \_!(. \H__J- K ) /____
e ' '

(flii.EF EK'E’CUTI\’—E DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
Turnover - net 31 2,778,192 1,574,822
Cost of sales 32 (2,166,540) (1,331,759)
Gross profit 611,652 243,063
Administrative expenses 33 (116,612) (91.246)
Selling and distribution expenses 34 (66,798) (51,477)
Other expenses 35 (51,406) (10.496)
Other income 36 52,514 55,940
Operating profit 429,350 145,784
Finance cost 37 (3,976) (4,216)
Profit before taxation 425,374 141,568
Taxation 38 (217,136) (40,882)
Profit for the year 208.238 100,686
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees per share) 39 15.62 7.55

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A

2 ’l | -~ \‘_/ - I; /__.
] ///; - it o 4 - L e
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
Profit for the year 208,238 100,686
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and
loss
Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit plan liability 40.9 2,942 9,913
Deferred tax 25.1 {853) (2.875)
2,089 7.038
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 21 40,557 538,518
Total comprehensive income for the year 250,884 646,242

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Am/f/»« o i o e

== A= 7 e
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
2022 2021

Note  (Rupees in thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 42 199,802 148,874
Finance cost paid (4,009) (2,638)
Income tax - net (41,236) 27,472
Employees' benefit paid 19,294 (20,199)
Leave encashment paid (2,559) -
Long-term loans and advances - net 38 (2,350)
Long-term deposits 41 (3,762)
Net cash tlows generated from operating activities 171,371 147,397
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (25,335) (9,804)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 1,999 39,340
Profit received on saving accounts and treasury bills 44,320 35,259
Short-term investments made during the year (2,138,939) (1,724,462)
Short-term investments redeemed during the year 2,156,840 1,507,794
Dividend received 1,578 356
Net cash flows generated from / (used in) investing activities 40,462 (151,517)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

[Long-term financing (21,396) (9,374)

Lease rentals paid (14,736) (7,700)

Dividend paid on ordinary shares (128,987) (19.848)
Net cash used in financing activities (165,119) (36,922)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 46,714 (41,042)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19,320 60,362
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 66,034 19,320

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A _
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

I Capital TCSCIYeS Revenue reserves
ssued,
subscribed Remeasurement Taotal R
. . . ¥ i Total equity
and paid-up Revaluation General | (loss)/ gain on | Unappropriated | reserves
capital surplus on land | reserve defined benefit profit
plan
{Rupeces in thousands)
RBalance at July 01, 2020 133,343 - 160,000 {10.493) 1,011,804 1,161.311 1.294,654
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - - 100.686 100.686 100,686
Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liability - net of tax - - - 7,038 - 7.038 7.038
Revaluation surplus on fixed assets - 538,518 - - - 538518 538518
- 538,518 - 7.038 100,680 640.242 640,242
Transaction with owners
Final dividend paid on ordinary shares & Rs. 2 per share - - - - (20.000) (20,000) (20,000)
Balance at June 30, 2021 133,343 538518 160,000 (3,455) 1092490 1,787,553 1,920,896
Balance at July 01, 2021 133,343 538518 160.000 (3.455) 1,092,490 1,787,553 1.920,8%6
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - - 208.238 208,238 208,238
Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit hability - net of tax - - - 2.089 - 2.089 2.089
Revaluation surplus on fixed assets - 40,557 - - - 40,557 40,557
- 40,557 - 2,089 208,238 250 884 250,884
Transaction with owners
Final dividend paid on ordinary shares @@ Re 4.5 per shares - - - - (60.004) (60,004) (60,004)
Interim dividend for the period ended Sep 30, 2021 patd on
ordinary shares @ Re 1.5 per shares - - - - (20,001) (20,001 (20,001
Interim dividend for the period ended Dec 31, 2021 paid on
orchinary shares @& Re 1.75 per shares - - - - {23,335 (23.33%) (23.335)
Interim dividend for the period ended Mar 31, 2022 paid on
ordinary shares i Re 2 per shares - - - - {26.669 (26.669) (26,669)
- - - - (130,009) {130,009) (130,009)
Balance at June 30, 2022 133,343 579,075 160,000 {1.366) 1,170,718 1,908.428 2,041,771

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an mtegral part of these financial statements,

//F . e L S vz L,_

| g e £ ;
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Baluchistan Wheels Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on June 16, 1980. The Company is
engaged in manufacturing and marketing of automotive wheel rims for trucks, buses, tractors, cars
and mini commercial vehicles. The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

2 GEOGRAPHICAL. LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS
The registered office of the Company is located at the 1st Floor, State Life Building No. 3, Dr.

Zianddin Ahmed Road, Karachi, Pakistan. The manufacturing facility (plant) of the Company is
gituated at Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, Lasbella, Baluchistan.

3 BASIS OF FREFARATION
3.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting standards applicable
in Pakistan comprise of :

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board { TASB ) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

3.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for certain

items as disclosed in the relevant accounting policies in note 5 to the financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for
cash flows information.



NALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITEDg®

3.3 Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the
application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

Judgments and estimates made by management that are significant to the financial statements are
as follows:

- depreciation method, useful lives, residual values and fair value of property, plant and
equipment (notes 5.1 and 6)

- provision of slow-moving and obselete stores, spares and loose tools and stock-in-trade
{notes 5.4, 5.5, 10 and 11)

- allowance for expected credit losses (notes 5.14 and 12)

- taxation {notes 5.7 and 25)

- employee benefit obligations (notes 5.16 and 40)

- provision for warranty {notes 5.11 and 29)

- lease liabilities (notes 5.3 and 23)

- contingencies (notes 5.12 and 30)

3.4 Functional and presentation currency

Ttems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates {the functional currency). The
financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees ('Rupees’ or 'Rs.'), which iz the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

4 APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

4.1 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the
vear ended June 30, 2022

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June
30, 2022. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or are not expected to have material impact on the financial statements
other than certain additional disclosures.
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4.2

Effective date
(annual periods

beginning on or

after)
Interest Rate Benchmarch Reform - Phase 2
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) January 01, 2021
Amendments to TFRS 16 'Teases' - Extended practical relief regarding Covid -
19 related rent consessions April 01, 2021

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not
expected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain
additional disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ - Reference to the conceptual
framework January 01, 2022

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements' - Claszification
of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024

Amendments to TAS 1 Precentation of Financial Statementis' - Dizclosure of
Accounting Policies January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates January 01, 2023

Amendments to TAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023

Amendments to TAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment’' - Proceeds before
intended use January 01, 2022

Amendments to TAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Asgets' - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract January 01, 2022

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.



NALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITEDgS

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board {IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards; and
IFRS 17  Insurance Contracts.

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless stated
otherwise.

= | Property, plant and equipment
a) Operating fixed assets

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,
except for treehold land which is stated at revalued amount. Historical cost includes expenditure
that iz directly attributable to the acquisition of the item including borrowing costs and exchange
differences recognized, for the acquizition of property, plant and equipment up to the
commencement of commercial production. The cost of self constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labor and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working
condition for its intended uze.

Subsequent costs {except freehold land) are included in an asset's carrying amount or recognized
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The cost of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in
statement of profit or losz during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items {(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation on operating fixed assets other than land is provided on a reducing balance method,
except for computers which are depreciated on straight line method. Depreciation iz charged on
addition trom the day the aszet iz available for uze and is continued to be depreciated until it is
derecognized. Rates of depreciation, which are disclosed in note 6, are determined to allocate
the cost of an asset less estimated residual value, if not ingignificant, over its usetul life.

Freehold land is initially recognised at cost and iz subzequently measured at revalued amount,
which 1s the fair value at the date of revaluation less accumulated impairment, if any.

The assets’ residual values, depreciation method and useful lives of each part of property, plant
and equipment are reviewed at the end of each year, and adjusted if impact on depreciation is
significant.
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Disposal of assets is recognized when significant risks and rewards incidental to the ownership
have been transferred to buyers. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amounts and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

b) Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress (including stores held for capital expenditures) are stated at cost and
consizts of expenditure incurred, advances made and other costs directly attributable to operating
fixed assets in the course of their construction and installation. Cost also includes applicable
borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when
assets are available for use intended by the management.

5.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the assets'
recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss iz recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable aszet group
that generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group. Impairment
loszes are recognized as expense in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount iz the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is
recognized, the depreciation charge iz adjusted in the fiture periods to allocate the asset's
revized carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
Reversal of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that asset's carryving amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no
impairment losses had been recognized. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

3.3 Leases
a) Right of use assets

The right of use asset is measured at cost, as the amount equal to initially measured lease liability
adjusted for lease prepayments made at or before the commencement date, initial direct cost
incurred less any lease incentives received.

The right of use asset iz subsequently depreciated using straight line method from the date of
recognition to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease
term. The estimated useful lives of the right of use aszets are determined on the same basiz as
thoze of operating fixed azsets. In addition, the right of use asset iz periodically reduced by the
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease liability.
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Right of use asset pertaining to head office iz depreciated over the lease term of 3 years using
straight line method and vehicles over the useful life at the rate of 20% using reducing balance
method.

b) Lease liability

The lease liability i1s measured upon initial recognition at the present value of the future lease
payments over the lease term, discounted with the specific incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequently lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in the rate,
if there i a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or it the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or iz recorded in the statement of profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

5.4 Stores and spares

Stores and spares are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value (NRV).
Ttems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a periodic basis and
provizion iz made for slow-moving and obszolete items annually, if required.

5.5 Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw material is
determined by using the moving average method.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Stock-in-transgit is valued at purchase price, freight value and other charges incurred thereon upto
the reporting date.

Work-in-process and finished goods consist of the direct materials costs, fuel and power cost
and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads including labour cost, depreciation
and maintenance etc.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.
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5.6 Trade debis and other receivables

Trade debtz and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The Company iz required to
recognize allowance for doubtful debts on all financial assets carried at amortized cost in
accordance with FExpected Credit Loss (ECL) requiring to recognize the loss irrespective
whether the loss event has occurred. Bad debts are written off when considered irrecoverable.

5.7 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statement of profit or lozs account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case it iz also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

a) Cwrrent

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in
accordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is
calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date after taking into
account tax credits and tax rebates. The charge for current tax alzo includes adjustments, where
considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous wyears arizing from assessments
framed during the reporting period for such years.

b) Deferred

Deterred tax iz accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax aszets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available in future years to utilize deductible temporary differences, unused tax lozses and tax
credits.

The carryving amount of deferred tax asset iz reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax iz calculated based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted up
to the reporting date and are expected to apply to the periods when the differences reverse.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

c) The Company takes into account decizions taken by the taxation authorities. For instance where
the Company's view differs from the income tax department at the assessment stage, the disputed
amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.
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Government Grant

The Government Grant iz measured upon initial recognition as the difference between fair value
ot the loan and loan proceeds. The fair value of the loan is the present value of the loan proceed
received, discounted using the prevailing market rates of interest for a similar instrument.
Subsequently, the grant is recognized in the statement of profit or loss, in line with the
recognition of interest expenses the grant is compensating.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds received (net of
transaction cost) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Finance cost are accounted for on an accrual basis and are shown as interest and markup is
accrued to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

Short term borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs on long term finances and short term borrowings which are obtained tfor the
acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of that aszet. All other borrowing
costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which these are incurred.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost as allowed under IAS 23
"Borrowing cost".

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired
in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Liabilities tor trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which 1s the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to
the Company and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Exchange gains and losses arising on
transaction in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the
respective liabilities.
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Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, it iz probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and amount of that obligation can be measured reliably.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provizions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is dizgclosed when the Company has a poszible obligation as a result of past
events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain fihure events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation, or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provizions of the instrument.

The Company classzifies its financial assets in the following categories: at tair wvalue through
profit or loss, fair wvalue through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The
claszification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Amortized cost

A financial asset iz measured at amortized cost it it meets both the following conditions and is
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

(i} it is held with in a business model whose ohjective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

(i1} its contractual terms give rizse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Om initial recognition, a financial asset iz claszified as measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) equity investment, or fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL). The clazsification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the
business model in which a financial asset iz managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.
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These assets are initially measured at fair value. Trasaction cost incurred is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets. The gross carryving amount of a financial asset is written
off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof.

3.13.2 Financial liabilities
5.13.3 Recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial aszets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
conzsideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value and amortized cost, as the case may be. The particular
measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with
each item.

3.13.4 Derecognition

The financial assets are de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights
that comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are
extinguished 1.e. when the obligation specified in the contract iz discharged, cancelled or
expired.



NALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITEDgS

3.14 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount iz reported in the financial
statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized
amounts and the Company intends to settle either on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

5.15  Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into functional currency (i.e. 'Rupees’) at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

5.16 Employees benefiis

The Company's employees benefits comprise of provident fund, gratuity scheme, compensated
absences and medical benefits for eligible employees.

5.16.1 Staff retirement benefits
a) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity Fund)

The Company operates an approved funded defined gratuity scheme for all permanent employees
who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service for entitlement of gratuity. The
contributions to the scheme are made in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation. The
latest actuarial valuation was carried out as of June 30th, 2022 using Projected Unit Credit
method.

Remeasurement losses and gains are recognised directly to other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to the statement of profit or loss on subsequent periods. All the past service costs
are recognised at the earlier of when the amendments or curtailments occurs and when the
Company has recognised related restructuring or termination benefits.

b) Defined contribution plan (Provident Fund)

The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund scheme for all
permanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service. Equal
contributions are made by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 1026 of the
basic salary for executives and 10% of the basic salary plus cost of living allowance for non-
executives.
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5.16.2 Compensated absences

Accrual for compensated absences iz made to the extent of the value of accrued absences of the
eligible employees cadre at the reporting date using their current salary levels as per Company's
policy. No actuarial valuation of compensated absences is carried out as the management
congiders that the financial impact ig not material.

5.16.3 Medical benefits

The Company maintains a health insurance policy for its entitled employees and their respective
gpouses. The Company contributes premium to the policy annually. Such premium is recognised
as an expense in the statement of profit or loss in the period to which it relates.

5.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities
as described below:

Revemue from contracts with customers
Sale of goods

Sale of goods iz recognized when the Company has transferred control of the products to the
customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

Revenue comprises the fair value for the zale of goods net of sales taxes and discounts. Revenue
trom the sale of goods is recognized when control of the goods passes to customers and the
customers can direct the use of and substantially obtain all the benefits firom the goods.

Contract assets arize when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring
goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.

It a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is
recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the
Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

Others

- Scrap sales are recognized on delivery to customers at realized amounts.

- Return on deposit is accrued on time proportion basis by reference to the principle
outstanding and the applicable rate of return.

-  Profit on savings accounts iz recognised on effective interest rate method.

- Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive such payment iz establizhed.

- All other revenues are accounted when performance obligations are met.
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.18

.19

5,20

3.21

5,22

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances.
Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year atiributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is declared and approved by the
Company’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. Appropriations of profit are reflected in
the statement of changes in equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are based at agreed rates at normal commercial rates on the
same terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Company’s other components. The Company has only one reportable
segment 1.e mamufacturing and marketing of automotive wheel rims for trucks, buses, tractors,
cars and mini commercial vehicles.
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6 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

The following is the staternent of operating fixed assets:

Hreehold Buildingson|  Plant and Electrical | Furniture 3 Office Library Rightangsssete
Description M5 e freehold land| machinery | installations | and fixtures Veicles equipments Computers books : Head el
6.1) Vehicles )
office
(Rupees in thousands)
Year ended June 30, 2022
Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV) 541,077 42,346 299,041 7,838 1,297 13,566 2,604 186 2 34,840 3,153 945,950
Additions (at cost) (refer note 6.2) - - 20,819 - 67 2,153 1419 277 - 3,600 - 28,935
Disposals (NBV) - (552) . 87 989 59 . . (1,687)
Revaluation (refer note 6.5 & 20) 40,357 - - - - - - - - - 40,557
Depreciation charge - @117 (33,043) 780 (130 (2,608) (1,060) (88 - (7,633 (3,153 (50,617)
Closing net book value 581,634 40,229 286,265 7,054 1,146 12,722 2,904 375 2 30,807 - 963,138
Gross carrying value basis
Cost 581,634 105,813 1,067,502 31486 4,770 27,046 13,630 3469 42 41,500 9459 1,886,751
Accumulated depreciation / impairment - (63,584) (781.237) (24 432) (3,624) (14,324 (10,726) (3,094) 40y (11,093)  (9459) (923,613)
et book value 581,634 40,229 286,265 7,054 1,146 12,122 2,904 375 2 30,807 - 963,138
Year ended June 30, 2021
Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV) 2,559 44575 330436 4,617 1441 13,314 3,041 220 2 7,280 6,306 414,291
Additions (a cost) (refer note €.2) - . 3,631 4225 - 40896 1,062 74 - 33,939 - 83834
Disposals (MBV) - (446) - (38,294 1mm - - (2,845) - (41,762)
Revaluation (refer note 6.5 & 20) 538,518 - - - - - - - - - - 538,518
Depreciation charge - 2,229) (35,026) (558) (144 (2,850) (1,329) (108) - (3,53 (3,153 48,931
Closing net book value 541,077 42,346 299,041 7838 1297 13,566 2,604 186 2 34,840 3,153 945,950
Gross carrying value basis
Cost 541,077 105,813 1,052,959 31486 5470 27495 17,199 5,852 42 38,300 9459 1,835,152
Accurmulated depreciation / impatrment - (63 467) (753,918) (23,648) 4,173) (13,929 (14,595) (5,666) (40) (34600 (6306) (889,202)
Net book value 541,077 42,346 299,041 7838 1297 13,566 2,604 186 2 34,840 3,153 945,950
Depreciation rate (% per annum) - St 10 10to 20 10 10 20 33 33 10 20 33

6.1 This freehold land of 23.593 acre (2021: 23.593 acre) is located at Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowk, Lasbella, Baluchistan

6.2 The addition of Rs. 2.753 million in owned vehicles includes transfer from leased assets to owned assefs at a cost amounting to Rs. Nil (2021: Bs. 6.147 million).

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
6.3 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 32 40710 40424
Administrative expenses 33 9845 8216
Selling and distribution expenses 34 62 291

50617 48931

64 The cost of fully depreciated assets as at June 30, 2022 15 Rs. 79.317 mullion (2021: Rs. 82.632 million)
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Details of the latest revaluation exercises carried out by the external wvaluers based on which
revaluation surplus has been recorded in these financial statements are as follows:

Name of Eevaluation Written down ERevalued Carrying
external date value before amount values as at
valuer revaluation as at June 30, 2022

(Rupees in '000)

Fairwater
Property

Leaseholdland ~ "ANErS & 130 2022 2559 541 077 581 634

SUrVEYors

(Private)
Lirmited

These valuations fall under level 2 hierarchies which have been explained in note 6.5.3.

The fair market value and the forced =zales value of the revalued land iz Rs. 581.634 million and
Rs. 465.307 million respectively at the reporting date.

Had there been no revaluation, the values of specific class of leasehold land as at June 30, 2022
under the cost model would have been as follows:

Cost Written dovwn value

2022 2021 2022 2021
(Eupees in '000})

Leasehold land 2,559 2,558 2,558 2,558

2,559 2,559 2,559 2,559

Non financial asset fair valuation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The valuation techniques and inputs used to develop fair value measurements are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical aszets or liabilities;

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
obszervable for the asset or liability, either directly {as prices) or indirectly {(derived from

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
date {(unobservable inputs).
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6.6 Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

Valuation techniques used in measuring the fair value of leasehold land and the significant
unobservable inputs used in the valuation are as follows:

Leasehold land

The tair value of leasehold land was determined by obtaining market values of the properties
and considering its size, nature and location, as well as the trend in the real estate and property
sector. All relevant factors affecting the saleability of the asset, availability of the buyers and
the aszessment of its real value under prevailing economic conditions were accounted for. The
tair value of the land was assessed based on information available in current real estate market
and has been categorized as level 2.

The estimated fair value of land would increase / decrease in line with the selling prices for
property of same nature in the immediate neighbourhood and adjoining areas.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
7 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
This comprises of:
Plant and machinery 7.1 - 4,100
7.1 Movement of carrving amount of plant and machinery
Opening balance 4,100 -
Additions {at cost) 15,666 4,100
Transztferred to operating fixed assets (19,766) -
Closing balance - 4,100
8 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans - secured
Emplovees 8.1 2,982 2,706
Executives 8.1 & 8.2 3.068 2,305
6,050 5,011
Current maturity 13 {1,760) {1,381)
4,290 3.630
Advances - secured
Employees 21,978 7,799
Executives 8.2 6,804 5. FTF2
28,782 13,571
Current maturity 13 (26,934) {11,025)
1,848 2,546
6,138 6,176
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8.1 This reprezents loans given to executives and employvees as per employment terms. These are
recoverable in equal monthly installments over a period of four years. These loans are secured
against the retirement benefits of employvees and does not carry any interest or mark-up.

8.2 The maximum aggregate amount due firom executives and employees at the end of any month
during the year was Rs. 7.215 million {2021: Rs. 8.077 million).

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
9 LONG-TERN DEPOSITS
{Ungecured - considered good)
Trade deposits 4,019 4,019
Lease deposits 3,630 3,690
7.649 7,709
9.1 These are in the normal course of business and does not carry any interest or markup.
10 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 7,959 4,398
Spares parts 92.444 91,797
Loose tools 1,936 1,902
102,339 95.097
Provision for slow-moving and obsolete stores and spares (62,610) (60,293)
39,729 37.804
10.1  Provision for slow-moving stores and spares
Opening balance 60,293 58,281
Provision recognized during the year 32 2,317 2,012
Cloging balance 62,610 60,293
11 STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials components 272,866 187,610
Work-in-process 177,745 115,778
Finizhed goods 84,855 42 093
Scrap stock 8,316 156
543,782 345,637
Proviszion for slow-moving and obsolete 11.1 {4,018} {1,966}
stock-in-trade
539,764 343,671
11.1  Provision for slow-moving and obsolete stock-in-trade
Opening balance 1.966 14,140
Provizion / (reversal) of provision made during the vear 2,052 (12,174)

Clozing balance 4,018 1.966
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
12 TRADE DEBTS
{Unszecured - considered good)
Due firom associated undertakings 121 1,984 2,683
Others 236,333 261,942
258,317 264,625
Considered doubtfil - -
Allowance for expected credit losses - -
258,317 264,625

12.1  This comprizses of amount receivable ftrom Gandhara Nissan Limited, a related party. However,
the zaid relationzhip has been ceased firom the month of May, 2022 due to no more existence of
common directorship.

12.1.1 The aging of related party balance at the reporting date is as follows:

Not past due 780 -
Past due 1-30 days 1,204 2,683
1,984 2 683

12.2  The maximum amount due from related party at the end of any month during the vear was Rs.
3.136 million {(2021: Rs. 1.976 million).

12.3  Movement in allowance for expected credit lozsses iz as follows:

Opening balance - 517
Charged during the yvear - -
Reversed during the year - (517)
Cloging balance - -

12.4 Thesze are in the normal course of business and interest free.

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans - secured

Current maturity of long-term loans 1.760 1,381
Advances

Current maturity of long-term advances - secured 26,934 11,025

for expenses - unsecured 13.1 490 411

to suppliers - unsecured 13.2 11,889 19,187

39,313 30,623

41,073 32,004

13.1  This includes advances provided to employees to meet buginess expenses and are settled as and
when the expenses are incurred. These advances do not carry any interest or mark-up.
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13.2  This represents advances to suppliers in the normal course of business and does not carry any
interest or mark-up.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
14 DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Deposits-unsecured {considered good)
Trade deposits 600 115
Lease deposits 420 -
1,020 115
Prepayments 14.1 413 442
1,433 556

14.1  This represents short term deposits in the normal course of business and does not carry any
interest or mark-up.

15 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Accrued profit on treasury bills 334 6,948
Gratuity fund 458 23,038
15.1 & 40.3 792 29,986

15.1 These are in the normal course of business and interest free.
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
16 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss:
Listed equity securities 16.1 & 16.4 3,770 6,102
Mutual funds 16.2 - 20,279
3.770 26,381
At amortised cost
Treasury bills 16.3 519,996 524,193
523,766 550,573

16.1 Listed equity securities

Short-term investment in equity securities of listed companies are as follows:

Number of shares Company name
2022 2021
10,000 10,000 Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 1,947 3,458
25,000 25,000 Fauji Cement Company Limited 354 575
5,000 5,000 Nishat Mills Limited 370 466
6,250 6,250 Attock Refinery Limited 1,099 1,603
46,250 46,250 3,770 6,102

16.2 Mutual funds

Number of units

2022 2021 Name of Fund

- 2,091,651 NIT Money Market Fund - 20,279
Opening balance 20,279 -
Additions during the year 1,391 20,008
Redemptions during the year {21,670) -
Closing balance as at June 30 - f 20,008
Market Value as at June 30 - 20,279
Unrealized gain - 271

16.3 These carry profits at rate ranging from 9.73% to 15.32% per annum (2021: 6.85% to 14.06%)
per annuin.
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
16.4 Net unrealizsed (loss) / gain on remeasurement of investments recognised as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss:
Market value 3.770 6,102
Carrying value (6,102) {3.307)
(2,332) 2,795
17 TAXATION-NET
Advance income tax 85,930 76,046
Provision for taxation 38 {216,711) {43,356)
{130,781) 32,690
18 BANKBALANCES
Current accounts 15,937 17,767
Saving accounts 18.1 50,097 1,553
66,034 19,320
18.1 These carry profits at the rates ranging from 7.75% to 13.00% (2021: 6.25% to 7.25%0) per
annum.
19 ORDINARY SHARFE CAPITAT,
Number of ordinary
shares of Es. 10/~ each
2022 2021
9 276,000 9,276,000 Fully paid in cash 92 760 92 760
4 058,250 4,052,250 Issued as fully paid bormus shares 40 583 40,583
13,334 250 13,334,250 133,343 133,343
19.1 The shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other
entitlements in the form of cash, bonus and right shares, as the case maybe, as and when declared
by the Company. All shares carry one vote per share without restriction.
20 RESERVES

Fevenue reserves

General reserve 160,000 160,000
Remeasurement loss on defined benetit plan {1.366) {3.455)
Un-appropriated profit 1,170,718 1.092.490
1,329,352 1,249,033
Capital reserves
Revaluation surplus on land 21.1 579.075 538.518
1,908,427 1,787,553

20.1 Movement of reserves have been reflected in the statement of changes in equity.
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21

21.1

22

22.1

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

This represents revaluation surplus relating to leasehold land (notes 6.6 and 6.7).

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
Balance as the beginning of the year 538,518 -
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of
incremental depreciation charged / disposals
during the year, net of deferred tax - -
Related deferred tax habihty
Revaluation surplus arising during the yvear 40,557 538,518
40,557 538,518
579,075 538,518
Less: Related deferred tax liability on:
- Revaluation at the beginning of the year - -
- Revaluation surplus ansing during the vear - -
- Effect of change of tax rate - -
- Incremental depreciation charged /
disposals during the vear - -
579,075 538,518

The revaluation surplus on land in capital reserve, and is not available for distribution to the
shareholder, in accordance with section 241 of Companies Act, 2017.

LONG-TERM LOAN
Non-current maturity 22.1 - 10,418
Current maturity 8,790 19,768

8,790 30,186

This represents a long term loan obtained from a conventional bank under the refinance scheme
for payment of wages and salaries by State Bank of Pakistan.

It carries flat mark-up at the rate of 3% per annum. The SBP allowed spread under this scheme up
to 3% per annum. However, the effective interest rate is calculated at 8.51% and the loan has
been recognized at present value.
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The loan iz repayable in 8§ equal quarterly installments commenced from January 2021
discounted at the effective rate of interest. The differential mark-up has been recognized as
Govermment grant as disclosed in note 26 which will be amortised as interest income over the
period of facility. The loan i1s secured against first pari-passu hypothecation charge over current
assets.
2022 2021
(Rupees in thousands)
23 LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities 26,314 37,450
Current portion {12,365) {13,973)
23.1 13,949 23,477
23.1 Movement of lease liabilities is as follows:
2022 2021
Vehicles Head office Total Vehicles Head office Total
Premises Premises
(Rupees in thousands) (Rupees in thousands)
Opering balarce 34315 3,135 37,450 4519 6,713 11,632
Tropact of iratial application of IFR5-16 - - - - - B
Additions 2,600 ; 3,600 32,700 - 32,700
Accretion of intersst 2,743 3,008 5,846 4,161 263 4,424
6,348 3,098 9,446 36,861 263 37,124
Payrme nts {17,710} (2,872) (20,582) (7,465) (3.241) {11,306)
Closing halarce 22,953 3,361 26,314 34,315 3,135 37,450
Churrert matarity {9,004) {3,361) {12,365) (10,338} (3,135 (13,973)
13,049 ] 13,049 23,477 - 23,477
Maturity analysiz-contractual cash flow
2022 2021
Minimum lease i
FPresent Value Minimum lease Fresent Value
payment payment
R (Rs. in "000)
Within one yvear 14474 12,365 16473 13,973
After one year but not mare than five vear 14,588 13,549 25,137 23477
29,062 26,314 41,610 37,450
Amount representing finance charges (2,748 - {4,160) -
Present value of minimum lease pavments 26,314 36,314 37,450 37450
Current potrtion (12,365) (1Z,365) (13,973 (135973
13,5459 13,9459 23477 23477

23.2 The Company has entered into various finance lease agreements with a financial ingtitution in
respect of vehicles. The rate of interest used as the dizscounting factor ranges between 12.2% to
13.5% per annum {2021: §.6% to §.9% per annum ).

23.3 Rentals are payable in equal monthly installments whereas repairs and insurance costs are borne
by the Company. These are secured against demand promissory notes and title documents of the
vehicles.

23.4 The Company is bound by certain covenants which includes but are not limited to payment of

certain taxes and to exercize reazsonable care.
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Deposits from employees 1,949 1,968
Current maturity {1,053) {563)
896 1,405

Represent interest-free deposits received from employees on account of executive cars and
generator scheme and are adjustable within the period of five and three years respectively

against respective assets.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation 251 34,972 33.694

The net balance for deferred taxation is in respect of
tollowing temporary differences:

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated tax depreciation allowance 54,718 51,762
Defined benefit plan 853 2,875
Right-of-use assets 8.934 11,018
64,505 65,655
Detferred tax assets
Provisions 21,902 21,100
Lease liabilities 7,631 10,861
{29,533) (31,961)
34,972 33,694

GOVERNMENT GRANT

Opening balance 1,369 3.361
Recognised during the year - -
Releazed during the year 36 {(1.278) {1.992)
{1,278) {1,992)
Closing balance 91 1,369
Current maturity {91) {1,278)
- 91

As aforementioned in note 22.1, the purpose of the government grant was to facilitate the
Company in making timely payments of salaries and wages to their employees in light of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The grant iz conditional upon the fact that the Company would not
terminate any employee, due/owing to cash flows limitations, for a period of six months from the
date of receipt of the first tranche.
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
27 GIDC PAYABLE
GIDC payable 175 1,892
Less: Current portion shown under current liability (175} {581)
- 1,311

During 2020, based on appeal filed by the Government, the Supreme Court of Pakistan in its
judgement dismissed all the petition filed against the aforesaid matter and decided in tavor of
Federal Government. Accordingly, as per the direction given in the said judgement, the
Company 1s required to pay the amount of levy charged upto July 2020 in twenty four equal
monthly installment commenced from August, 2020. The component of late payment surcharge is

no more payable as per the aforesaid judgment.

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 23,485 145,221
Accrued liabilities 113,028 57,519
Contract liabilities 28.1 6,735 7,777
Gratuity fund - -
Provident fund - -
Retention money 455 455
Compensated absences 6,086 7,245
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 28.2 4,845 1,607
Workers' Welfare Fund 28,030 19,350
Security deposits 388 388
Mark-up on running finance 2 35
Others 252 752
183,306 240,350

28.1 Represents advance received from various customers. Revenue recognised during the year from
amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year amounted to Rs. 1.335 million

{2021: Rs. 1.260 million).

28.2 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Opening balance 1,607 {226)
Interest on funds utilized in Company's business 37 28 -
Allocation for the year 35 22,845 7.611
24,480 7.385
Amount paid during the year {19.635) {5,778)
Closing balance 4,845 1,607
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2022 2021
Note {(Rupees in thousands)
29 PROVISION FOR WARRANTY
Opening balance 1.889 813
Charge of provision 827 1,213
Adjustment against claims - {137)
Closing balance 2,716 1,889

30 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
30.1 Contingencies

30.1.1 On April 08, 2004, National Bank of Pakistan {(INBP) has made a pavment to the Privatisation
Commission amounting to Rs. 91.25 million and filed a suit in the Honorable High Cowt of
Sindh for the recovery of the zame from the Company which was subzequently transferred due to
administrative reasons to the Banking Cowt No. III at Karachi. On Jamuary 06, 2022, the
Honorable Banking Cowrt dizgmizssed the Suit # 53 of 2017 in Company's favour, but the WBP has
filed 1=t Appeal # 34 of 2022 in the Honourable High Cowrt of Sindh against thiz order and the
appeal iz pending till date. The management, based on the advice of it legal adwvisor, iz of the
opinion that the case will be decided in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has
been made in theze financial statements.

30.1.2 On August 06, 2001, the Company filed suit before the Honorable High Court of Sindh at
Karachi, against WNBP for satizfaction of Charge on Asszet which vwas created in anticipation of a
prospective loan / finance to be provided by NBP to the Company. As the proposed loan /
finance had not been obtained firom NBP by the Company, the charge should have been redeemed
by NBP. Currently, the maiter iz at the state of evidence of the parties. The management, based on
the advice of legal adwviszor, iz of the wview that no financial implications will arizse to the
Company as a result of this suit and accordingly, no provizion has been made in thiz respect in
these financial statements.

30.1.3 On January 25, 2018, the Additional Commiszioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the
assezszment and izsued order under section 122 {(53A) of Income Tax Ordinance, (ITO) 2001, for
the tax yvear 2015, and created arbitrary tax demand of Rz, 35.356 million. Being aggrieved with
the order of the concerned ACIR, the Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue Appeals - T [CIR {A)] on which the concerned CIR {(A) through its order under section
129 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, deleted certain additions and remanded back the case to the
concerned ACIR on account of certain additionz. The ACIR filed an appeal before Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR} on the izsued which were deleted by the CIR (A) which is
pending adjudication.

As the outcome of the set aside proceedings can not be ascertained at this stage, Therefore, the
management of the Company, based on the adwvice of tax advisor, has made a provision
amounting to Rs. 35.356 million on prudent basis.

30.1.4 On September 27, 2018, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue {(IDCIR) amended the assessment
and issued order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year
2017, reducing tax refunds for the said tax wvear by Rs. 28.39 million. Being aggrieved, the
Company filed and appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue {(Appeal) (CIRA), who
maintained the demand of DCTR through appellate order dated January 15, 2019. The Company
filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue {ATIR)} which is pending
adjudication.
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30.1.5

30.2

L) |

31.1

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, i of the view that outcome of the appeal
cannot be ascertained at this stage and consequently any future potential liability. However, the
management, on prudent basis, has made a provision of Rs. 14.19 million this vear in respect of
the above contingency.

On March 15, 2021, DCIR amended the assessment and issued order under section 122(5A) of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2018, demanded Rs. 417.996 million against
which the Company filed an appeal before CIRA who has passed an appellate order under
section 129(1) whereby set azide / delete the whole demand except for addition in difference in
stock between the Income tax return and sales tax return amounting to Rs. 72.088 million. The tax
impact of which will be Rs. 14.86 million against which the Company has decided to file an
appeal betore ATIR.

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, 1s of the view that outcome of the appeal
cannot be ascertained at this stage and consequently any future potential liability. However, the
management, on prudent basis, has made a provision of Rs. 20.905 million in respect of the
above contingency.

2022 2021
Commitments (Rupees in thousands)
Outstanding letters of guarantee 4,512 4,512
Qutstanding letters of credit - raw material 248,886 428,777
Outstanding letters of credit - machinery - 12,667
TURNOVER - NET
Local sales 31.1 3,257,390 1,902,044
Sales return {5,278) {4,668)
Sales tax {473,920) (322,554)
{479,198) (327,222)
2,778,192 1,574,822

Local sales include scrap sales of Rs. 152.037 million {2021: Rs.91.341 million).
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32.1

COST OF SALES

Materials consumed
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Fuel and power
COutzourced job contractor
Staff transportation
Repairs, maintenance and stores consumption
Insurance
Provision for slow moving stores and spares
Vehicle running expenses
Provision / {reversal) of provision for stock-in-
Entertainment
Telephone and postage
Travelling and conveyance
Computer expenses
Subscription
Others
Manufacturing cost
Work-in-process
Opening stock
Clozing stock

Cost of goods manufactured
Finizhed goods
Opening stock-in-trade
Clozing stock-in-trade

Faw material and components consumed

Opening stock-in-trade
Raw material and components
Scrap

Purchases made during the year
Closing stock-in-trade

Raw material and components
Scrap

Note

32.1
32.2

6.3
6.3

10.1

11.1

2022

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITEDg

2021

(Rupees in thousands)

1,786,152 873,871
190,027 133,574
89,620 63,000
37,767 38,436
2,943 1,988
69,130 47,644
57,264 35,649
19,391 16,440
4,656 6,413
3,185 2,763
2,317 2,012
3,620 2,753
2,052 (12,174)
2,240 1,791
519 588

98 191

57 77

67 61

164 119
2,271,269 1,215,196
115,778 135,686
(177,745) (115,778)
(61,967) 19,908
2,209,302 1,235,104
42,093 138,748
(84,855) (42,093)
(42,762) 96,655
2,166,540 1,331,759
103,134 151,671
156 1,610
103,290 153,281
1,810,394 823,880
1,913,684 977,161
(119,216) (103,134)
(8,316) (156)
(127.532) (103,290}
1,786,152 873.871
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32.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 63.543 million {(2021: Rs. 26.776 million) in
respect of the following staft employment benefits.

2022 2021
Note (Fupees in thousands)
Bonus 51,860 13,486
Medical 4,428 3,567
Gratuity fund 2,464 3,172
Provident fund 3.328 3,270
Accrual for compensated absences 1.461 3.281
63,541 26,776
33 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and other benefits 33.1 65,231 49,026
Outsourced service expenses 8,090 7,895
Wehicle rmunning expenses 10,796 6,737
Corporate expenses 4.346 3.877
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.3 5,155 3,526
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 6.3 4,690 4,690
Entertainment 3.633 3,351
Utilities 4,075 3,181
Legal and professional charges 2,225 1,593
Auditor's remuneration 33.2 1,035 1,263
Insurance 1,023 967
Telephone and postage 675 668
Staff transportation T66 627
Repairs and maintenance 823 760
General stores supplies 1,734 1,959
Printing, stationery and periodicals 213 275
Travelling and conveyance 334 -
Allowance / (reversal) for expected credit losses 12.3 - {(517)
Others 1,769 1,368
116,612 91,246

33.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 21.280 million {2021: Rs. 7.649 million) in
rezpect of the following staff employment benefits.

Bonus 13,829 3,396
Medical 2,611 889
Gratuity fund 658 308
Provident fund 2,097 1,981
Accrual for compensated absences 2,087 875

21,282 7,649
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2022 2021
Note {Rupees in thousands)

33.2 Auditor's remuneration
Statutory audit fee T65 765
Half yearly review 160 160
Code of Corporate Governance 70 F0
Other certifications - 110
Out of pocket expenses 40 158
1,035 1,263

34 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Selling expenses

Salaries and other benefits 34.1 19.220 14,486
Outzourced service expenses 2,629 2,506
Entertainment 1,578 1,574
Vehicle running expenses 1.350 885
Ttilities 899 T84
Insurance 337 293
Export related expenses - 132
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.3 62 291
Provision tor warranty 827 1,213
Others 371 253
27,273 22 417

Distribution expenses
Outward fireight 39,525 29,060
66,798 51,477

34.1

35

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 6.672 million {(2021: Rs.
respect of the following statf employment benefits.

Bonus
Medical
Gratuity fund
Provident fund

Accrual for compensated abzences

OTHER EXFPENSES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Workers' Weltare Fund
Unrealized loss on change in fair value of listed

equity securities
Exchange loss-net

2.248 million) in

3,457 899
2,283 213
164 183
739 734
29 219
6,672 2,248
28.2 22.845 7,607
8,681 2,889
2,332 -
17,548 -
51,406 10,496
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
36 OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Profit on savings accounts 5,269 3,216
Proftit on treasury bills 32,437 32,207
Diividend income 36.1 63 30
Realised gain on redemption of investments 104 -
Unrealised gain on change in fair value of
listed equity securities - 2,795
37,875 38,248
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - net 312 3,735
Net exchange gain - T73
Sale of wastage material - net 10,514 10,865
Amortization of Government grant 26 1,278 1,992
Others 2,535 327
14,639 17,692
52 514 55,940

36.1  This amount represents dividend income from Honda Atlas Car Pakistan Limited and Nishat
Mills Limited.

37 FINANCE COST

Markup on running finance 11 45

Markup on long-term loan 687 2,487
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 28.2 28 -

T26 2,532

Bank charges and commission 181 258

Finance charges on leases 3.069 1,426

3,976 4,216

38 TAXATION

For the year
Current 38.2 (138,306) (43,356)
Prior {78,405) -
Deterred {(425) 2,474

(217,136) (40,882)

38.1 The Company computes tax provisions based on the generally accepted interpretations of the
tax laws to ensure that sufficient provizion for the purpose of taxation iz awvailable.
Accordingly, the Company has assessed the sufficiency of the tax provisions.
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38.2 MNumerical reconciliation between the applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate iz as

tollows:
2022 2021
loage Doage
Applicable tax rate 29.00 29.00
Effect of Super Tax 4.00 -
Others - 0.01
4.00 0.01
Average effective tax rate 33.00 29.01

39 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

The earnings per share as required under IAS 33: "Earnings per share” iz given below:

2022 2021
Profit for the year (Rupees in "000") 208,238 100,686
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in thousands 13,334 13,334
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary
shareholders {(Rupee per share) 15.62 7.55

There iz no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.
40 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
40.1 General description

This scheme provides terminal benefitz for all its permanent employees who aitain the
minimum qualifying period at varying percentages of last dravwn basic zalary. The percentage
depends on the number of service years with the Company. Annual charge iz based on
actuarial valuation carried out az at June 30, 2022 uging the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The Company faces the following risks on account of graiuity:

Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater
than what the Company has azssumed. Since the benefit iz calculated on the final salary, the
benefit amount would also increase proportionately.

Mortality rizk - The rigk that the actual mortality experience is different than the azsumed
mortality. This effect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is
on the higher zide.

Withdraswal risk - The risk of actual withdraswals experience ig different firom assumed
withdrawral probability. The significance of the withdrawal rizsk varies with the age, service
and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.
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Asset volatility - MWMost assets are invested in risk free investments i.e. Government Bonds
Treasury bills. However, investments in equity instruments is subject to adverse fluctuations
as aresult of change in the market price.

Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with
reference to corporate bond wields. A decrease in corporate bond wields will increase plan
liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans®
bond holdings.

Investment risks - The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet
the liabilities.

Risk of insufficiency of assets - This iz managed by making regular contribution to the Fund as
advized by the Actuary.

40.2 Principal actuarial assumptions

Following are a few important actuarial assumptions used in the valuation:

2022 2021
Coage Jbage
Discount rate 13.25 10.00
Expected rate of increase in salary 12.25 10.00
40.3 Reconciliation of balance due to defined benefit plan
Present value of defined benefit obligation 90,140 87.138
Fair value of plan assets {90.598) {110,176}
Closing net asset {158) {23.038)
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
40.4 Movement of the liability recognized in the
statement of financial position
Opening net (asset) / liability {23.037) 3.412
Charge for the year 40.8 3,286 3,665
Remeasurement chargeable to other
comprehensive income 40.9 (2.942) {9.913)
Contribution made during the year 22.236 {20,201}
Closing net asset 15 (457) (23.037)
40.5 Fair value of plan assets at vear end
Treasury Bills 56,968 45,451
Mutual Funds 23,267 25,494
Equity Investments 10,227 12,441
Cash at banks 136 26,790
90,598 110,176

Benefits payable

90,598 110,176
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40.6 Movement in present value of defined henefit obligations

Opening present value of defined benefit obligations 87,138 83,060
Current service cost for the year 4,478 4,233
Interest cost for the year 8,674 6,938
Benefits paid during the year {802) {2,405)
Remeasurement gain on obligation (9,348) {4,708)
Closing present value of defined benefit obligations 90,140 87,138

40.7 Movement in fair value of plan assets

Opening fair value of plan assets 110,176 79,649
Remeasurement on plan assets {6,406) 5,205
Contributions during the year (22,236) 20,201
Benefits paid during the year {802) {2,405)
Expected return on plan assets 9,866 7,526
Closing fair value of plan assets 90,598 110,176

40.8§ Charge for the year

Current service cost 4,478 4,233
Interest cost {1,192) {568)
Charge for the year 3,286 3,665
2022 2021
Note {Rupees in thousands)

40.9 Remeasurement chargeable to other comprehensive income

Actuarial gaing from changes in financial assumptions - -

Experience adjustments (9,348) {4,708)
(9,348) (4,708)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 6,406 (5,205)
(2,942) (9,913)

40.10 Sensitivity analysis

The impact of 120 change in following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:
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Manufacturers of Automotive Wheels in Pakistan

Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumpition
(Rupees in thousands)

Discount rate 70,451 67,222
Salary increase 76,173 73,338

40.11 The expected contribution to the fund for the yvear ending June 30, 2023 iz estimated to be Rs.
41.555 million.

41 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLLAN
The Company has contributory provident fimd scheme for benefit of all its permanent
employees. The Fund is maintained by the Trustees and all decisions regarding investments

and distribution of income etc. are made by the Trustees independent of the Company.

41.1 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.

41.2 Contributions are made by both the Company and the members & 10%0 of the basic salary for
executive and 10%6 of the basic salary plus cost of living allowance for non-executive.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation 425,374 141.568
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.3 39,831 42,244
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 6.3 10,786 6,687
2022 2021
MNote (Rupees in thousands)
Amortization of Government grant 36 (1,278) {(1.992)
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 36 (312) (3.735)
Finance cost 37 3,976 4.216
Provizion for slow-moving and obsolete
stores and spares 10.1 2,317 2,012
Reversal of provision for slow-moving
and ob=zolete stock in trade 11.1 2,032 (12.174)
Allowance for expected credit losses 12.3 - (517)
Accrual for compenszsated absences 1,400 4,375
Reversal for provigion / {provision) of warranty
claims and adjustment claims 29 827 1.076
Provizion for employee defined benefit
obligations 40.8 3.286 3.665
Profit on savings accounts and treasury bills 36 (37.810) (35.423)
TUnrealized (loss) / gain on change in
fair value of listedequity securities 2.332 (2.795)
Dividend income {1,578) {(357)
451,203 148.850
Working capital changes 42.1 {251,401) 24
199, 802 148.874
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b)

Changes in working capital

{Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other receivables
Sales tax refundable

Increase in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Sales tax payable

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITEDg"

(4,242) (471)
(198,145) 82,078
6,308 (155,567)
(9,069) (15,672)
(877) 1,153
- (23,038)
595 1,231
(205,431) (110,286)
(55,852) 110,310
9,882 -
(251,401) 24

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and

Executives of the Company is as follows:

2022 2021
Chief Director| Executives Total Chief Director| Executives Total

Executive Executive

(Rupees in thousands)
Managerial remuneration 6,579 12,776 6,264 25,619 6,579 12,776 5,556 24,911
House rent 2,961 5,748 2,819 11,528 2,961 5,748 2,500 11,209
Staff retirement benefits 1,206 2,342 2,050 5,598 1,206 2,342 2,139 5,687
Bonus 4,934 9,582 1,389 15,905 548 1,064 402 2,014
Medical 1,612 2,989 195 4,796 398 665 115 1,178
Utilities 650 1,313 798 2,761 393 1,280 740 2,413
Leave fare assistance 1,890 760 63 2,718 265 54 43 367
Total 19,832 35,510 13,583 68,925 12,350 23,929 11,500 47,779
Number of persons 1 2 3 6 1 2 3 6

The chief executive, directors and certain executives are also provided with free use of the Company's maintained cars, household

items and other benefits in accordance with their terms of employment.

Aggregate amount charged in the financial statements against fee for attending meetings to six non-executive directors was Rs. 2.250

million (2021: Rs. 2.010 million).
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44 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties of the Company comprise directors, key management personnel retirement benefit plans and cormpary with cormmon directorship.
Transactions with related parties in the financial staternents are as follows:

2022 2021
Nature of transaction Nature of Relation Basis of Relation Note (Rupees in thousands)
Sale of goods
Gandhara Nissan Limnited * Associated cormpany Cormnon Director 37,638 23716
Dividend on ordinary shares
Directors and others Personnel Fey management personnel 32,272 10,966
Long term loan given
Executives Personnel Eey management personnel 2,465 2,305
Advances
Executives Personnel Fey management personnel 4,750 5,772
Sale of vehicles / equipments
Executives Personmel ey managernent personnel 561 3,893
44.1 Year end balances 2022 2021
(Eupees in thousands)
Receivable from a related party 1,984 2,683
Long term loan 3,068 2,305
Advances 6,804 5772

11,856 10,760

442 All transactions with related parties have been carried out on comrmercial terms and conditions except certain executives are entitled to obtain cars at
Company's car executive scheme.

443 * The Ghandara Missan Limuted (GHIL) was a related party of the Company due to cormmon directorship. The election of directors was held on May
25th, 2022, based on election, the said relationship has ceased to exist during the reporting period.
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2022 2021
(Units in thousands)

45 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Plant capacity - single shift 850 850
Actual production 648 372

45.1 During the year actual production was below the estimated capacity due to lower demand of
wheel rims.

46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
46.1 Risk management policies

The Company finances its operations through equity and management of working capital with a
view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.
Taken as a whole, the Company is exposed to market rizsk (including interest rate risk,
currency risk and equity price rigk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans, deposits, trade and other
payvables and leaze liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities iz to raise
finance for the Company's operations. The Company has various financial assets such as short-
term investments, loans, trade debts, other receivables and cash and bank balances, which are
directly related to its operations.

The Board of Directors has owverall respongsibility for the establishment and oversight of
Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes and assumptions during the yvear
ended 30 June 2022 which are summarized below:

46.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if
counter parties fail to perform as contracted. The Company manages credit risk through having
exposure only to customers and parties considered credit worthy and obtaining securities
where applicable. At the reporting date, the Company iz exposed to credit risk on the
following assets:
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2022 2021
(Rupees in thousands)

Loans and deposits 13,699 12,720
Trade debts 258,317 264,625
Short-term investments in mutual funds - 20,279
Bank balances 66,034 19,320

338,050 316,944

Credit quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings or the historical information about counter party default

rates as shown belows:

Customers with no defaults in the past one year

Trade debts 258,317 264,625

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables, management performs
credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial posgition, past experience and other
factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained firom certain parties.

The exposure to banks is managed by dealing with wvariety of major banks and monitoring
exposure limits on continuous baszis. The ratings of banks ranges from Al+ to AAA

2022 2021
(Fupees in thousands)
Banlk Balances

Al+ 58,630 9,505

Al - -

AAN 7,404 9,815
66,034 19,320

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet
contractual obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other
conditions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Sales to three major customers of the Company are around 43%6, 2426 and 14%% of the
Company's total sales during the vear ended 30 June 2022 {2021: 33%6, 28%0 and 13%a).

Impaired assets

During the year no assets have been impaired.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Company applies prudent risk management policies by
maintaining sufficient bank balances and by keeping commitied credit lines. The table below
summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the following
reporting dates based on contractual undiscounted payments.
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INTEREST / MIARE-TUP/ PROFIT
BEARING NOM-TNTEREST TOTAL
Less than one| One to ive Total BEARITNG
year years
{Rupees in thousands)

June 30,2022
Long—term financing 2,750 - 2,750 - 2,750
Lease liakalities 12,3265 13,245 26,5314 - 26,314
Long-term deposits - - - 1,249 1,245
Trade and other payahbles - - - 155,275 155,275
Tneclamed dividend - - - T0E7 TOET
21,155 13,545 35,104 164,311 199415

June 30,2021
Long-term financing 19768 10418 20,186 - 20,186
Lease liakalities 13,573 232,477 37,450 - 37,450
Long-term deposits - - - 1,268 1,968
Trade and other payahles - - - 220,999 220,999
Tneclamed dividend - - - 6,065 6,065
33,741 32,885 67,636 229032 296 668

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of fiture cashtlows will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprizes three types of risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate
rizk and other price risk such as equity price rizk.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial azsets and financial liability will
fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates. It arizes mainly where receivables and

payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company iz not materially exposed
to foreign currency risk as of the reporting date.

Outstanding letters of credit - raw material 248,886 428,777

The following significant exchange rates have been applied.

Average rate Reporting date rate
2022 2021 2022 2021

USD ta PER 178,03 160.13 204.70 157.65

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been higher by the amount
shown below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on net foreign currency exposure
at reporting date.
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(Rupees in thousands)

Effect on profit 20,824 {20,824)

h) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the tair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's lease liabilities. The
Company mitigates its risk by maintaining excess funds in saving accounts with floating
interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax.

Increase / Effect on
decrease in profit before
interest rate tax
%) (Rupees in
thousands)
Asg at June 30, 2022 +2 476
-2 (476)
As at June 30, 2021 +2 (718)
-2 718

) Equity price risk

The Company's listed equity investment i susceptible to market price rigk ariging from
uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The Company manages the equity
price risk through placing limits on investments in equity instruments that are reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors, on a regular basis.

At the reporting date, the exposure to equity investments at fair value listed on the PSX 1s Rs.
3.770 million {(2021: Rs. 6.102 million). Given that the changes in fair values of the equity
investments held are strongly positively correlated with changes of the PSX market index, the
Company has determined that an increase / (decrease) of 10% in the fair market value could
have an impact of approximately Rs. 0.38 million (2021: Rs. 0.61 million) increase /
{decrease) on the Company's profit before tax.
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2022

2021

(Rupees in thousands)

46.5 Financial instruments by category
Financial assets at amortized cost
Loans and deposits 8.669 7.823
Loans and advances 34,832 19,621
Trade debis 258,317 264,625
Other receivables 792 29.986
Caszh and bank balances 66,034 19,320
368,644 341,376
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Long term financing 8,790 30,186
Lease liabilities 26,314 37.450
Trade and other payables 150,430 219,393
Long term deposits 1,949 1,968
Un-claimed dividend 7.087 6,065
194,570 295,061
47 FATR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value iz the price that would be received to zell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value iz the presumption that the Company iz a going concern
and there iz no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of itz operations or to
undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements
and fair wvalue hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
aszet either directly that is, derived from prices.

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not bazed on observable market data {that is,
unadjusted) inputs.
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees in thousands)
Investments "at Fair value through
profit or loss’

Jume 30, 2022
Listed equity securities 3,770 - - 3,770
MMutual funds - - - -

3,770 - - 3.770

Jume 30, 2021
Lizsted equity secwrities 6,102 - - 5,102
MMutual funds 20,279 - - 20279
26,381 - - 26,381

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting
period during which the changes have occurred.

There wwere no transfer during the wvear between level 1, 2 or 3 of fair value hierarchy of
financial assets or financial liabilities.

48 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASHFLOWS ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Liabilities
Description L?lg te_rm Total
Financing
{(Rupees in thousands)
Balanceas at July 1, 2021 30,186 30,186
Addition - -
F epayment (21.398a) (21,398
(21.53896) (2153963
Balance as at June 30, 2022 a,790 a,790
49 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy iz to maintain a strong capital base =0 as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors
monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit affer taxation divided
by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitor the level of dividend to
ordinary shareholders. There were no changes to the Company's approach to capital
management during the vear and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

(i) to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(i1) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.
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The management at all times seeks to earn returns higher than its weighted average cost of
capital, by increasing efficiencies in operations, o as to increase profitability.

The shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other
entitlements in the form of cash, bonus and right shares, as the case maybe, as and when
declared by the Company. All shares carry one vote per share without restriction.

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousands)
The proportion of debt to equity at the year end was:
Total Borrowings 8,790 30,186
Less: Balances with banks 15,937 17,767
Net debt {7,147} 12,419
Total equity 2,041,770 1,920,896
Total capital 2,034,624 1,933,315
Gearing ratio {0.00) 0.01

OPERATING SEGMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

All sales of the Company comprise of automotive wheel rims for trucks, buses, tractors, cars
and mini commercial vehicles.

Total sales of the Company relating to customers in Pakistan were 100% during the year
ended 30 June 2022 {(2021: 100%).

All non-current assets of the Company at the end of the current and preceding year were
located in Pakistan.

Sales to three major customers of the Company are around 43%, 24% and 14% of the
Company's total sales during the year ended 30 June 2022 {2021: 33%, 28% and 13%b).

DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 31, 2022 proposed final cash dividend
of Rs. 4.75/- per share for the vear ended 30 June 2022 amounting to Rs. 63.338 million for
approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on QOctober 01, 2022.
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2022 2021
{(Rupees in thousands)

52 DISCLOSURE BY COMPANIES LISTED IN
ISLAMIC INDEX
L.oans / advances obtained as per Islamic mode:
Loans - -
Advances - -
Shariah complaint bank deposits / bank balances - -
Profit earned tfrom shariah complaint
bank deposits / bank balances - -
Revenue earned from a shariah complaint business - -
Gain / (loss) or dividend earned from shariah complaint
investments Dividend income 65 30
Gain on sale of investments - -
(Loss) / gain on remeasurement of investments at fair
value through profit or loss (2,332) 2,795
Exchange gain earned - -
Mark up paid on Islamic mode of financing - -
Profits earned or interest paid on any
conventional loan or advance
Interest paid on loans - -
Relationship with shariah compliant banks
The Company has earned dividend income from the investment made in the shares of shariah
complaint companies.
53 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue on August 31, 2022 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.
54 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The number of employees including contractual employees as at the year end was 217 (2021:
216) and average number of employees during the year was 219 (2021: 220).
85 GENERAL
55.1 Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousands of rupees, unless stated otherwise.
55.2 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the
purpose of comparison and for better presentation. However, no significant reclassification has
been made during the year.
/ b S .
. _._._—:i_,_—»ﬂj-"“'——o—'—\ 1 . [’ "
o - -
CHIEF EXAECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

SHAREHOLDING RANGE
SHARI\]IS(I)LI.(;)II.:DERS NO. OF SHARES PERC?’;SFAGE
FROM TO
633 1 - 100 25,176 0.19
442 101 - 500 124,001 0.93
92 501 - 1000 69,617 0.52
92 1,001 - 5000 193,281 1.45
15 5001 - 10000 113,095 0.85
5 10001 - 15000 61,060 0.46
1 15001 - 20000 18,000 0.14
1 20001 - 25000 22,500 0.17
1 30001 - 35000 33,715 0.25
1 50001 - 55000 55,000 0.41
1 80001 - 85000 82,800 0.62
2 85001 - 90000 175,500 1.32
1 125001 - 130000 129,400 0.97
1 145001 - 150000 145,562 1.09
1 230001 - 235000 234,500 1.76
1 285001 - 290000 287,500 2.16
1 325001 - 330000 328,000 2.46
1 340001 - 345000 341,693 2.56
1 435001 - 440000 437,201 3.28
1 480001 - 485000 482,083 3.62
1 640001 - 645000 645,000 4.84
1 695001 - 700000 700,000 5.25
1 795001 - 800000 800,000 6.00
1 995001 - 1000000 1,000,000 7.50
1 1280001 - 1285000 1,282,825 9.62
1 1325001 - 1330000 1,328,360 9.96
1 1570001 - 1575000 1,571,971 11.79
1 2645001 - 2650000 2,646,410 19.85
1,302 13,334,250 100
Categories of Shareholders SE;E‘:;;ZL Numbe};:l(fiShares Percentage(%)
SPONSORS, DIRECTORS, THEIR SPOUSES & MINOR CHILDREN 11 6,147,507 46.10
BANK,DFI & NBFI 3 329,468 2.47
INSURANCE COMPANIES 1 341,693 2.56
MODARABAS & MUTUAL FUND 7 1,655,878 12.42
FOREIGN COMPANIES 7 5,905 0.04
OTHERS 22 1,918,534 14.39
GENERAL PUBLIC
--- LOCAL 1,093 2,896,320 21.72
--- FOREIGN 158 38,945 0.29
1,302 13,334,250 100.00
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING - BREAKUP
AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS NO. OF SHARES PERCENTAGE
SHAREHOLDERS HELD (%)
DIRECTORS, AND THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR-CHILDREN 11 6,147,507 46.10%
1 MR, RAZAK BENGALI 1,571,971
2  MRS. GUL BANO RAZAK 482,083
3 MR MUHAMMAD SIDDIQUE MISRI 2,646,410
4  MRS. MEHTAR BIBI 437,201
5 MRS, SABA NADEEM 3,000
6 MR. MUIIAMMAD IRFAN GHANI 4,842
7 MRS, KAUSAR [RFAN 1,000,000
9 MR. ANIS WAIIAB ZUBERI 500
9 MR. SYED ZUBAIR AHMED SHAH 500
10 MR. MUHAMMAD JAVED 500
11 IRFAN AHMED QURESHI 500
BANK. DFI & NBFI 3 329,468 2.47%
1 PRUDENTIAL INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED 575
2 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 893
3 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 328,000
INSURANCE COMPAINES 1 341,693 2.56%
1 STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN
MODARABAS & MUTUAL FUND 7 1,655,878 12.42%,
1 CDC- TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 1,328,360
2 CDC - TRUSTLEL NBP 5TOCK FUND 87,000
3 CDC- TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFA FUND 234,500
4 CDC - TRUSTLEL NIT-EQUI'TY MARKLT OPPORTUNITY FUND 4,000
5 CDC- TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1,500
6 CDC- TRUSTLEL NBP SARMAYA IZAFA FUND 500
7 GENERAL MODARABA SERVICES (PVT) LTD 18
FOREIGN COMPANIES 7 5,905 0.049%%
1 ROYAL BANK OF SCOTLAND 1,638
2 DANK OF SCOTLAND 718
3 BANKERS TRUST COMPANY 86
4  MORGAN STANLEY BANK LUXEMBOURG 1,322
5 MORGAN STANLEY TRUST COMPANY 718
6 CROSBY SECURITIES PTE LTD. 833
7 SOMERS NOMINEES (FAR EAST) LTD. 590
OTHERS 22 1,918,534 14.39%
1 M/S. NATIONAL MOTORS LIMITED 230
2 NATIONAL DIEV. FINANCE CORP.INVESTLERS 438
3  BOLAN CASTINGS LIMITED 287,500
4 PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMITED 718
5 AZIZ FIDAIIUSEIN & COMPANY (PVT) LTD. 40
a SIZA (PRIVATE) LTD 15,000
7 LOADS LIMITED 230
8 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 145,562
9 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST 5,108
10 S.H. BUKHARI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED a6
11 KIOJA (PIRIIAI) SIIIA I[SNA ASHARI JAMAT 230
12 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED 1
13 MILLAT TRACTORS LIMITED 1,282,825
14 TRUSTEES OF PAKISTAN MORBILE COMMUNICATION L.TD - PROVIDENT FUND 5,000
15 SIIERMAN SECURITIES 2,000
16 HAMID ADAMJEE TRUST 1,000
17 MUHAMMAD AHMED NADEEM SECURITIES (SMC-PVT) LIMITED 287
18 MSMANIAR FINANCIALS (PVT) LTD. 345
19 FIKREE'S (SMC-PVT) LTD. 134
20 MRA SECURITIES LIMITEDR - MF 500
21 CDC- TRUSTEE NAFA PENSION FUND EQUITY SUB-FUND ACCOUNT 88,500
22 CDCG- TRUSTEE NAFA [SLAMIC PENSION FUND EQUITY ACCOUNT 82,800
GENERAL PUBLIC 1,251 2,935,265 22.01%
1 GENERAL PUEBLIC - LOCAL
2 GENERAL PUBLIC - FOREIGN 38,945
1,302 13,334,250 100%
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE F13 10,029,566 75.2204
YOTING INTEREST IN THE COMPANY
1 MUHAMMAD SIDDIQUE MISRI 2,646,410
2 RAZAK BENGALI 1,571,971
3 CDC- TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UUNIT) TRUST 1,328,360
4  MILLAT TRACTORS LIMITED 1,282,825
5 MRS, KAUSAR [IRFAN 1,000,000
6 MR. KUMAIL IRFAN GIIANI $00,000
7 MR. WAJID IRFAN GHANI 700,000
8 MS. MAHEEN IRFAN GHANI 700,000
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 42nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
shareholders of Baluchistan Wheels Limited will be held on Saturday, October 01, 2022 at 12:00
Noon at the Registered Office of the Company, Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, District
Lasbella, Baluchistan, to transact the following business :-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on May 24, 2022.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended June 30, 2022 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports
thereon and Chairman’s Review Report.

3.To consider and approve payment of final cash dividend of Rs. 4.75 per share (47.5%) for
the year ended June 30, 2022 as recommended by the Board of Directors. This is in
addition to interim dividends already paid at Rs. 5.25 per share (52.5%).making a total
dividend of Rs. 10 per share (100%).

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the company for the year ending June 30, 2023 and fix
their remuneration.

OTHER BUSINESS
1. To transact any other business with permission of the Chairman.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Muhammad Asad Saeed
Company Secretary
Karachi: September 09, 2022

NOTES:

1. Closure of Share Transfer Books:

Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from September 23, 2022 to October 01,
2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the Shares Department of M/s THK
Associates (Pvt) Limited, Plot No: 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, DHA, Phase-VII, Karachi,
Pakistan, by the close of business on September 22, 2022, will be considered in time to determine
the above mentioned entitlement.

2. For Attending the Meeting:
i.  In case of individuals, the account holders ot sub-account holder and / ot the person whose

securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC, or original
passport at the time of attending the meeting.

ii.  Members registered on Central Depository Company (CDC) are also requested to bring their
particulars, ID number and account number in Central Depository System (CDS).
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In case of corporate entities, the Board of Director’s resolution / Power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominees shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at
the time of attending the meeting.

3. Proxy:
A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint any other
member as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote. Proxies in order to be effective must be
received at the Head Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours
before the time of holding the meeting

For Appointing Proxies:

i. In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holders and / ot the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirements.

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

iii. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
turnished with the proxy form.

iv.  The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting.

v. In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directot’s resolution / power of attorney with
specimen signature of the person nominated to present and vote on behalf of the
corporate entity, shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith the
proxy form to the Company.

4. Submission of CNIC/NTN for payment of Final Cash Dividend 2021 — 22:

a. As per SRO. 831(1)/2012 dated 5th July 2012, and other relevant rules, the electronic
Dividend should also bear the CNIC Number of the registered shareholder or the
authorized person, except in case of minor(s) and corporate shareholder(s).

b. In refer to comply with the SECP’s directions and in term of Section 243(2) (a) of the
Companies Act 2017, the Company shall be constrained to withhold the payment of
Dividend to the shareholders, in case of non-availability of identification number (CNIC or
National Tax Number] of the shareholder or authorized person.

c. Accordingly, the shareholders, who have not yet submitted copy of their valid CNIC or
NTN, are once again requested to immediately submit the same to the Share Registrar, M/s
THK Associates (Pvt) Limited.

5. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory):

a. In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act,2017 and
Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017, every listed company is required
to ensure that the cash dividends to its shareholders shall be paid through electronic mode
only directly into their bank accounts designated by the entitled shareholders instead of
issuing physical dividend warrants. Therefore, shareholders are requested to provide the
details of their Bank mandate specifying: (i) Title of account, (ii) Account number (iii) IBAN
number (iv) Bank name and (v) Branch name, code and address to the Company Share
Registrar. Those share- holders who hold shares with participants / Central Depository

Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the same to their concerned participant
/ CDC.
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Please note that as per Section 243 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017, listed Companies are
entitled to withhold payment of dividend, if necessary information is not provided by the
shareholders.

For the convenience of shareholders, e-Dividend Mandate Form is available on Company's
website http:// www.bwheels.com

Un-claimed/Un-paid Dividends:

The shareholders who, by any reasons, could not claim their dividends are advised to contact
our Share Registrar, M/s THK Associates (Pvt Ltd to collect /inquire about their
unclaimed/unpaid dividends.

Deposit of Physical Shares into Central Depository:

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company shall be
required to replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified
and from the date notified by the Commission within a period not exceeding four years
from the commencement of the Act i.e. May 30, 2017. Further, SECP vide its letter dated
March 26,2021 has advised to comply with Section 72 of the Act and encourage
shareholders to convert their shares in book-entry form.

In the light of the above, shareholders holding physical share certificates are requested to
deposit their shares in Central Depository by opening CDC sub-accounts with any of the
brokers or Investor Accounts maintained directly with CDC to convert their physical shares
into scrip less form. This will facilitate the shareholders to streamline their information in
member’s register, enabling the company to effectively communicate with the shareholders
and timely disburse any entitlements. Further, shares held shall remain secure and
maintaining shares in scrip less form allows for swift sale/purchase.

Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend under section 150 of the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001 (Mandatory):

a.

Pursuant to the provision of the Finance Act,2022 effective July 01,2022 the rate of
deduction of income tax from dividend payment under section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance ,2001 have been received as follows:

6)) For Active Tax Payer: 15%

(ii) For Non- Active Tax Payer: 30%
Further according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR),
withholding tax will be determined separately on “Active/Non-Active” status of principal
shareholder as well as Joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of
joint accounts.
In this regard all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding
proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to
our Share Registrar, in writing as follows:
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Principal Sharehol int Sharehol
Company | Folio / CDS | Total = Zimcgo}? Sharl(ei' older : 5 ;Olnshs a;e 1§~ der .
Name Account # | Shares | TYame an archolding proportion ame an areholding proportion
CNIC No. (No. of Shares) CNIC No. (No. of Shares)

d. The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of issue of this
notice; otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder
and Joint Holder(s).

e. The corporate shareholders, having CDDC accounts, are requested to have their National Tax
Number (NTN) updated with their respective participants.

9. Availability of Audited Financial Statements on Company’s Website:

a. In accordance with the provisions of Section 223 and 237 of the Companies Act 2017, the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year, which ended on 30th June 2022,
are available on the Company's website http:// www.bwheels.com , at least 21 days before
the date of AGM.

b. If any shareholder, desires to get the hard copy of Annual Audited Financial Statements, the

same shall be provided free of cost within seven working days of recerpt of such request.

c. For convenience of shareholders, a “Standard Request Form” for provision of Annual
Audited Financial Accounts 1s available on the Company's website http://
www.bwheels.com

10. Change of Address(If Any):
Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their addresses immediately to the

Company’s Share Registrar.

Transport will be provided to members from the Pakistan Stock Exchange Building to
attend the meeting. Departure from the Pakistan Stock Exchange Building will be at
10:30 am.

*Proxy Form 1s enclosed
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CODE OF CONDUCT / STATEMENT OF ETHICS
AND BUSINESS PARACTICES

The Board of Directors and the Management of the Baluchistan Wheels Limited shall endeavor to
conduct the Business of the Company in the most competitive manner and follow all the Norms and

Laws applicable in the country and be Judicious in the day to day affairs of the Company and adopt

the following significant polices in its true spirit.

Explanation:

Significant policies for this purpose may include:

#Risk Management.

#Human Resource Management including preparation of a Succession Plan.

#Procurement of Goods and Services.

“#Marketing.

# Determination of terms of Credit and Discount to Customers.

#Write-off of bad/ doubt full Debts, Advances and Receivables.

#Acquisition / Disposal of Fixed Assets.

#Investments.

#Borrowing of Moneys and the amount in excess of which Borrowings shall be Sanctioned/ Ratified
by a general meeting of Shareholders.

#Donations, Charities, Contributions and other payments of a similar nature including Corporate
Social Responsibilities.

#Determination and Delegation of Financial Powers.

# Transactions or Contracts with Associated Companies and Related Parties.

#Health, Safety, and Environment.

# Strictly avoiding questionable and improper payments or misuse of company’s Funds / Assets

#The Whistle Blower Policy
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Proxy Form
I/ We,
of (Full address)
being a member (s} of Baluchistan Wheels Limited and holdingof Shares under Folio
No. and for CDC Participant’s ITID No and Sub A/c
No. hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss of
(Full address). Folio
No. and / or CDC Participant’s ID No and Sub A/c No.
or failing him/her Mr. / Mrs. / Miss of
(Full address). Folio
No. and / or CDC Participant’s 1D No. and Sub
A /cNo. as my / our Proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote

for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 01,
2022 at 12 Noon via Video Conference and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand this day of 2022

Please affix
Rs. 5/- Revenue

SIGNATURE Stamp

Signature of Member (s)

Witness: Witness:
Name: Name:
CNIC No: CNIC No:
Address: Address:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company is entitled to
appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend and vote instead of his/her. No person shall act as
proxy (except for a Corporation) unless he/she is entitled to be present and vote in his/her own right.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member(s) or by his/her attorney duly
authorized, in writing, or if the member is a Corporation/Company either under the common seal, or
under the hand of an officer or attorney so authorized.

3. This Proxy Form duly completed must be deposited at the Head Officer of the Company, 1stFloor, State
Life Building # 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi not less than 48 hours before the time of holding
the meeting.

FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS / CORPORATE ENTITIES

CDC Shareholder and their proxies must each attach an attested photocopy of their Computerized National
Identity Card or Passport with this proxy form.

The Proxy Form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC number shall be
mentioned on the form.

In case of Corporate Entity, the Board of Directors Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith proxy form to the Company.
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Disc Wheels for Cars, Vans,
Pick-ups and 4x4s

Pak Suzuki Motor Co. Ltd.
Indus Motor Co. Ltd.

Lucky Motors Co. Ltd.

Disc Wheels for
Agricultural Tractors

Al-Ghazi Tractors Ltd.

Millat Tractors Ltd.

Orient Automotive Industries (Pvt.) Ltd.

Disc Wheels for
Commercial Vehicles

Hinopak Motors Ltd.

Fuso Master Motors (Pvt.) Lid.
Ghandhara DF (Pvt.) Ltd.
Ghandhara Industries Ltd.
Master Motors Corporation Ltd.

Afzal Motors (Pvt.) Ltd.




HEELS LIMITED,

Factory & Registered Office Main RCD
Highway, Hub Chowki, Lasbella
Baluchistan Telephone # : (0853)-
363426, 363428Fax # : (0853)-364025

www.bwheels.com




